
1 of 3 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, July 15, 2014 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m. 

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 

  
PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
  
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to 
discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 

Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Pastor Ken Sinclair, Faith Lutheran Church, Sugar Land) 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify 
themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will 
be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by 
the City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy 
to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Regular Meeting Minutes for June 17, 2014, and Special Meeting 
Minutes for June 23, 2014. (Cernosek) 
 

 B. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1819, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute 
and accept, for and on behalf of the City, a Drainage Easement between the City of Rosenberg and 
Sidney Mellon and Harry Lee Mellon for drainage facilities to be constructed by the City, generally 
located west of Bamore Road and associated with the CenterPoint Lateral Improvements Project. 
(Maresh)  
 

 C. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1820, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute 
and accept, for and on behalf of the City, a Drainage Easement between the City of Rosenberg and 
K & M Home Builders, Inc., for drainage facilities to be constructed by the City, generally located west 
of Bamore Road and associated with the CenterPoint Lateral Improvements Project. (Maresh)  
 



2 of 3 
 

 D. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-30, an Ordinance providing for the extension of 
the City Limits of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, by voluntary annexation of 1.00 acre tract of land in the 
Henry Scott League, Abstract 82, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, being out of and a part 
of the residue of that certain called 4.2799 acre tract (Tract 4) recorded in Volume 1274, Page 201 of 
the official records of Fort Bend County, Texas; granting to said tract of land and to all current and 
future inhabitants of said tract of land the rights and privileges of other citizens and binding said 
current and future inhabitants by all of the acts, ordinances, regulations and resolutions of said City, 
now in effect and to be hereafter adopted; adopting a service plan for the annexed area; providing 
a severability clause; providing for an effective date; providing for a savings clause and repealing 
conflicting ordinances or resolutions. (Tanner) 
 

 E. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1787, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Professional Services Agreement by and between the City 
and Kendig Keast Collaborative for professional planning services related to the Comprehensive Plan 
in an amount not to exceed $91,860. (Tanner) 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]  

2. Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to install drought-resistant plantings 
for a sign beautification project in Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex, and take action as necessary.  
(McCarthy) 
 

3. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1815, a Resolution authorizing the Parks and Recreation 
Department to submit an application to the Apache Foundation Tree Grant Program.  (McCarthy) 
 

4. Consider motion to adjourn for Executive Session. 
 

5. Hold Executive Session to deliberate potential purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property pursuant to 
Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code; and, to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of Municipal Court Judge pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 

6. Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into Regular Session, and take action as necessary as a result of 
Executive Session. 
 

7. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1817, a Resolution providing for the appointment of the 
Presiding Judge of the Municipal Court of the City, for a two (2) year term beginning October 01, 2014, and 
ending September 30, 2016. (Baker) 
 

8. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1818, a Resolution providing for an annual evaluation and 
authorized compensation for the position of Presiding Judge of the Rosenberg Municipal Court. (Morales) 
 

9. Announcements. 
 

10. Adjournment. 
 



3 of 3 
 

 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2014, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need of 
special assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   

 
Executive Sessions: The City Council may retire to executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, 
any time between the meeting’s opening and adjournment for the purposes of: 

• consultation with legal counsel (Section 551.071); 
• deliberation regarding real property (Section 551.072); 
• deliberation regarding economic development negotiations (Section 551.087) 
• deliberation regarding the deployment or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or 

devices (Section 551.076) 
 
Attendance by other elected or appointed officials: It is anticipated that members of other city boards, commissions or 
committees whose meetings may be governed by the Texas Open Meetings Act may attend this meeting in numbers 
that may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions or committees.  Notice is hereby given that the 
meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a possible quorum/meeting of the other boards, commissions 
or committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance.  The members may speak as recognized by the 
presiding officer, but no action may be taken by any board, commission or committee unless such item is specifically 
provided for on an agenda designated for that board, commission or committee and posted in compliance with the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
This Agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s legal counsel and the presence of any subject in any 
Executive Session portion of the agenda constitutes a written interpretation of Texas Government Code Chapter 551 by 
legal counsel for the governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney that the items discussed therein may 
be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering the available opinions of a court of record and 
opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney.  This provision has been added to this agenda with the 
intent to meet all elements necessary to satisfy Texas Government Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is 
conducted by all participants in reliance on this opinion. 



General Comments from the Audience: 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments 
of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each speaker 
is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from 
discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 



Comments from the Audience for 
Consent and Regular Agenda Items: 

 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to 
matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is 
limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda 
item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all 
speakers identify themselves by providing their name and 
residential address when making comments. 



ITEM 1 
 

Review of Consent Agenda. 
 

All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the 
City Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council 
Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its 
normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 



ITEM A 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Regular City Council Meeting Minutes – June 17, 2014 
2. Special City Council Meeting Minutes – June 23, 2014 
 
 



PAGE 1 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 17th day of June, 2014, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, met in a 
Regular Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Cynthia McConathy  Mayor Pro Tem 
William Benton  Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1 
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Dwayne Grigar  Councilor, District 3 
Amanda Bolf   Councilor, District 4 
 
ABSENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia  City Manager 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
Lora Lenzsch  City Attorney 
John Maresh   Assistant City Manager for Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Angela Fritz   Executive Director of Information Services 
Travis Tanner  Executive Director of Community Development 
Charles Kalkomey  City Engineer 
Dallis Warren  Police Chief 
Wade Goates  Fire Chief 
Darren McCarthy  Parks and Recreation Director  
Randall Malik  Economic Development Director 
James Lewis   Director of Technology 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
  
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of 
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the 
Texas Government Code. 

 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Pro Tem McConathy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
Charles Kalkomey, City Engineer gave the invocation and led the pledge of allegiance to the flag. 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at 
this time.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, 
the City Council is restricted from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our 
policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when 
making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular 
Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  
Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is 
scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their 
name and residential address when making comments. 
 
 
 



PAGE 2 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. REVIEW OF CONSENT AGENDA. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted 
by one (1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City 
Council Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from 
the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MAY 20, 2014, AND 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES FOR MAY 22, 2014.  
 

 B. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE NO. 2014-27, AN ORDINANCE GRANTING 
CONSENT TO THE FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 144 FOR THE 
ISSUANCE OF A BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 2014, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$2,000,000.  
Executive Summary: Ordinance No. 2014-27 grants the City’s consent to Fort Bend Municipal Utility District 
No. 144 to sell a Bond Anticipation Note (BAN), Series 2014, in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000. 
 
On May 06, 2003, Starwood Development, LLC, submitted a petition to the City to create a Municipal Utility 
District that included approximately 358.48 acres located primarily within the Corporate Limits of the City, with 
approximately 35.46 acres lying outside the City and outside the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of the City of 
Rosenberg, to be known as Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 144.  Accordingly, the Petition for 
Consent and associated Ordinance No. 2003-21 were approved by City Council at that time. Subsequently, 
City Council approved Ordinance No. 2005-32 on December 13, 2005, expanding the District’s territory by 
173.34 acres, approved Ordinance No. 2006-18 on July 18, 2006, expanding the District’s territory by an 
additional 1.5369 acres, and approved Ordinance No. 2010-14 on June 1, 2010, again expanding the District’s 
territory by an additional 6.00 acres.  The District is located south of Reading Road and east of FM Highway 
2977. 
 
Following is a list of previous Unlimited Tax Bond Sales and Bond Anticipation Notes (BAN) that have been 
approved by City Council: 

• Ordinance No. 2006-39 - City Council approved the District’s first bond sale in the amount of 
$2,815,000 on December 05, 2006.  

• Ordinance No. 2007-48 - City Council approved the District’s BAN in the amount of $1,650,000 on 
October 16, 2007. The BAN was subsequently repaid out of the bond sale authorized under Ordinance 
No. 2008-21.  

• Ordinance No. 2008-21.City Council approved the District’s second bond sale in the amount of 
$3,030,000 on October 07, 2008.  

• Ordinance No, 2012-38 - City Council approved the District’s BAN in the amount of $1,301,500 on 
November 06, 2012. The BAN approved by City Council under Ordinance No. 2012-38 was 
subsequently repaid out of the Series 2013 bond sale under Ordinance No. 2013-24. 

• Ordinance No. 2013-24 – City Council approved the District’s third bond sale in the amount of 
$2,695,000 on May 07, 2013.   

 
The District intends to submit a fourth Bond Application Report to the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality requesting permission to issue and sell $3,400,000 in Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, before the end 
of 2014.  Prior to the sale and issuance of these Bonds, the District has requested the City’s consent to the 
issuance of a Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2014, in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.  The BAN will be 
repaid out of the proceeds from the anticipated Bond sale. Please see the attached correspondence outlining 
the District’s proposed use of the Bond proceeds. 
 
Staff has reviewed the documentation and found it to be in compliance with applicable City ordinances.  
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-27, granting consent for the sale of the Bond 
Anticipation Note, Series 2014. 
 
Action:  Councilor Grigar made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve the Consent Agenda 
Items A and B.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 
2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE PROPOSED APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS MAIN STREET PROGRAM, AND 

TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary:  Proposed participation in the Texas Main Street Program (Program) was presented to 



PAGE 3 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

City Council at the May 27, 2014 Workshop.  At that time, City Council directed staff to move forward and to 
provide additional detail. The application process involves coordination between the business community, City 
staff, and downtown stakeholders. 
 
This item has been added to offer City Council the opportunity to review one of the most important components 
of the application, the proposed Budget, in advance of completion of the application.  A draft Budget was 
included in the agenda packet for review. Staff is seeking City Council’s feedback regarding the Budget and/or 
other areas of the Program.  
 
A final application will be submitted for City Council’s review and consideration in July, in advance of the 
application’s due date, July 31, 2014. If the application is accepted by Texas Main Street Program, the Program 
and Budget would be implemented in January FY2015. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Randall Malik, Economic Development Director explained the Main Street Program. An estimated 
annual cost of the Program is $80,000. This would fund the Main Street manager and all of the 
activities associated with the local Main Street Program. Recommendation is being made to use 
primarily Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) funds to fund the program. There are nine different criteria of the 
HOT tax that cities can use to justify utilizing HOT taxes. We feel the Main Street Program dovetails 
into three of those programs in particularly promoting tourism in the main street area; promoting the arts 
in the Cultural Arts District; as well as the encouragement of historical preservation. 

 
The following speakers addressed the item: 

• Shaunta Kuhl, 515 Olive Street, Wharton, Texas addressed Council regarding the Main Street 
Program. The Chamber ran a Resolution of Support for the Main Street Program through their 
Governmental Affairs Department.  The following Chamber Representatives were present: 

• Jim Russ, Chairman of Governmental Affairs 
• Barry Beard, Chairman of the Board  
• Leann Dawson, Director of Historic Downtown Rosenberg Division on staff side for the Chamber   
• Shaunta Kuhl read the Resolution in support of the Main Street Program and thanked Council for their 

consideration of the item. 
 
Questions: 

• Councilor Euton asked if this will take away from our current HOT budget. The Civic Center is funded 
from that fund. Will we have enough to be able to do this program in addition to the Civic Center? 

• Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services stated the HOT funds bring in from 
$500,000 to $600,000 annually. We are providing over $200,000 to the Civic Center. There are some 
operational dollars available and enough to cover this program. There should not be a problem fitting 
this addition into that budget. 

• Councilor Euton stated she would support this resolution. 
• Councilor Pena stated he thinks this is an overdue program.  We need to help the people in the 

historical area. Anything we can do to promote that would be good and he supports it. Randall Malik 
has done a good job with bringing in the sources and we appreciate what has been done. 

• Councilor Grigar stated he was not present for the Workshop but he has done research and his 
questions were answered. He thinks it would be money well spent for HOT funds. This Program has to 
go on for three years--is that through the Historical Commission and who oversees that? In this budget 
we have funds for a year. When would this be implemented? 

• Randall Malik stated it is local control. We are just committing that we will have a local board for a 
period of three years. We would join the Program January 1, 2015.  

• Councilor Bolf stated she hopes this Program will bleed over to Avenue H and help bring in businesses 
to help the area.  

• Councilor Benton asked where this employee would be based and do we have room? Would there be 
additional cost to office this person? Will this person be responsible to help fundraising for their own 
position? How do we track the benefits of this position? 

• Randall Malik stated he addressed that with the state coordinator regarding options. It is preferred that 
it is housed downtown but we have the flexibility of anywhere in the City. There would not be additional 
cost if we kept them in the City Hall. 

• Robert Gracia, City Manager stated we are doing a complete assessment of City Hall and the Parks 
Department regarding space. He is optimistic that we will find space and make it work.  

• Randall Malik stated yes they would raise money for their own position. Their title would be Main Street 
Manager and at the bottom of the budget there is some fundraising type projects they would participate 
in. For these projects in particular; he has seen Main Street Programs do fundraising and there would 



PAGE 4 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

be a fundraising aspect to the Program.  
• Benefits of this position could be tracked. Joyce Vasut is working with the downtown sales tax and it is 

broken out. Over time if that sales tax increased it would mean business activity would increase in the 
downtown area.  

• Councilor Benton stated if after three years it was seen to not be beneficial Council could determine 
whether or not they wish to renew. 

• Randall Malik stated yes. 
• Councilor Benton referenced the Cultural Arts and stated if for some reason the Cultural Arts is no 

longer there in a year or more what would you comment about that. 
• Randall Malik stated he has referred to it as the Cultural Arts District itself and not a particular entity. 
• Mayor Pro Tem McConathy stated the only outstanding question is who this person would report to, but 

between Council and the City Manager we can determine that before January. 
 
Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Bolf to approve the proposed application to 
the Texas Main Street Program. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1791, A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 
DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS AND GRANT OF EASEMENTS FOR 
ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK. 
Executive Summary:  The City of Rosenberg, Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC), and Rosenberg 
Business Park, LTD, executed a Development Agreement (Agreement) on March 01, 2013.  As a condition of Section 
2 of the Agreement, the developer is required to submit deed restrictions for the property to the City for approval.  
Among other items, the deed restrictions will restrict the 184 acres to an industrial and distribution business park, 
along with retail sales associated with the industrial and distribution uses and will provide other standards that address 
the quality of development in the Rosenberg Business Park.   
 
The Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions and Grant of Easements for Rosenberg Business 
Park is attached to Resolution No. R-1791 as Exhibit “A”.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-
1791 as presented.   
 
Key discussion points: 

• Randall Malik gave a PowerPoint presentation regarding the item. 
• Use Restrictions 
• Sec 2.1: Requires that the property is used solely for commercial uses (light industrial, manufacturing, 

distribution, etc.,) 
• Sec 2.2: No temporary building shall be permitted without City approval.  
• Signage Restrictions 
• Sec 2.3: Signs are limited to one per building. 
• No pole signs, banners, or temporary signs are permitted. 
• Screening Requirements 
• Sec 2.9: Requires all outside storage areas be screened:  
• Coated chain link fence with slats; and  
• Screened from the street or other property by slats or trees and shrubs.  
• Buildings Standards Requirements 
• Sec 5.5: Requires front building elevation to consist of 100% masonry, glass, or a combination thereof. 
• Limits the total height of a building to 70ft. 
• Loading Dock Restrictions 
• Sec. 5.6:  Limits the location of loading docks on side of buildings.  
•  “The location of loading docks or loading areas shall be in the rear or side of the building or, if in the 

front of the building, a minimum of 50 feet from any street and screened similar to outside storage 
areas as described in Section 2.9.” 

• Landscaping Requirements 
• Minimum of 15% of lot to be landscaped using trees, shrubs, or grass. 
• 1 street tree for each 30 feet of lot width along business parks main road. 
• 2 parking lot trees to be provided for every 10 parking spaces. 
• All landscape area to be irrigated 100% using permanent underground irrigation system. 
• City Standards 
• Use Restrictions, Signage, Screening, Building Standards, Loading Dock Restrictions & Landscaping 

Requirements   
• Each Negotiated Component Exceeds Existing City Standards.  
 



PAGE 5 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

Questions: 
• Councilor Benton asked if the RDC has approved the changes to the architectural. 
• Randall Malik explained the RDC is aware of the changes and are comfortable with them. We did not 

need to take it to the RDC for formal approval. 
• Councilor Benton stated he would feel more comfortable if this was discussed with the RDC before 

Council approval. He does not feel comfortable voting on it at this time. 
• Councilor Bolf stated she does not have any questions if the RDC agrees with it. Since it is going to be 

kept commercial only it will help. The airport was there first and she does not want to have issues with 
the type of airport it is and she wants to make sure that that business is protected.  

• Councilor Grigar stated the RDC had questions about the percentage of masonry and utilizing 
screening. What does “in grant of easements” mean?  

• Lora Lenzsch, City Attorney stated the easements are in Article 6 and those are for the developer in 
case he needs different type of access for placing the internal utilities. He is telling anyone that 
purchases one of those tracts that he has the right to get an easement whether they agree with it or not 
so he can continue the development. It is solely for his purpose. 

• Councilor Grigar asked if all the other utilities will be on each parcel?  
• Lora Lenzsch stated that was addressed in the development agreement with the City as far as any 

easements that the City was going to be obtaining from the developer. It is separate from the deed 
restrictions. 

• Councilor Pena concurred with Councilor Benton. Anytime we make any changes and another entity is 
involved like the RDC to pass something without showing the committee what changes we ask for the 
money coming from the RDC he feels this is something that needs to be presented to the RDC. 

• Randall Malik clarified that the RDC at the May meeting received a memorandum that addressed all of 
the changes made to the agreement but it was not on the agenda for formal action. 

• Councilor Euton agreed in part with Councilors Benton and Pena but she stated in the interest of time 
and not hold up the process that Council approve this contingent upon RDC approval to show that we 
agree but let them have the final say and if they didn’t like it they could put a hold on it but then it would 
not have to come back to Council. 

 
Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton to approve, Resolution No. R-1791, a 
Resolution approving the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions and Grant of Easements for 
Rosenberg Business Park contingent on the Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) approval. The motion 
carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 

 
4. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1806, A RESOLUTION APPROVING 

CERTAIN LOCAL ENHANCEMENTS ALONG THE US HWY 59 / I-69 EXPANSION PROJECT CORRIDOR, 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
THE CITY, ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS REGARDING SAME. 
Executive Summary:  This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to consider 
approval of local enhancements to the bridge retaining walls that will be constructed along the US Hwy 59 / I-69 
corridor as a part of the current expansion project. Specific enhancement opportunities include the addition of a 
precast concrete medallion on which the City would be allowed to paint the City seal. The medallion would be 
approximately seven (7) feet in diameter and would be raised approximately two (2) inches from the retaining 
wall surface. The attached bridge retaining wall shop drawings provide two (2) options to choose from and staff 
is requesting guidance from City Council. 

• Option “A” – precast form one-time cost of approximately $10,000 
• Option “B” – precast form one-time cost of approximately $20,000 

 
If City Council approves one of these options, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Area Engineer 
has agreed to seek TxDOT approval to include the cost as a part of the construction project. If the request is not 
approved, either the City and/or Rosenberg Development Corporation would be responsible for the cost. 
According to TxDOT, the medallion would be installed at the following intersections: 

• Cottonwood Church Road 
• Kroesche Road 
• Bamore Road 
• SH 36 
• FM 2218  
• Reading Road 

 
A second enhancement opportunity is the selection of a paint scheme for the bridge retaining walls. A paint 
scheme has not been identified as of this date, but a decision would have to be made in the near future. In order 
to accommodate the local enhancements, TxDOT may require the City to enter into an Agreement that would 



PAGE 6 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

identify the City’s responsibility to fund and construct said local enhancements located within the TxDOT right-
of-way and to be responsible for all future maintenance costs. If required by TxDOT, the Agreement would be 
placed on a future Agenda for consideration.  
 
The decision to add the medallion would have to be made at this time as the precast panel manufacturer is 
ready to start production.  
 
This is a one-time opportunity for the City to implement a “branding” scheme that will set Rosenberg apart from 
other cities and will be sustainable for the life of the bridges. The option selected by City Council will be 
attached to Resolution No. R-1806 as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• John Maresh, Assistant City Manager for Public Services read the Executive Summary and gave an 
overview of the item. 

• Robert Dody, Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) gave a presentation on the available 
options. 

• John Maresh pointed out Option A is $10,000 and the remaining cost would be painting the medallion 
at a cost of $470.00 per emblem. 

• The general consensus of Council was to move forward with Option A. 
 
Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton to approve Option A and Resolution 
No. R-1806, a Resolution approving certain local enhancements along the US Hwy 59 / I-69 Expansion Project 
corridor, and authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, all necessary 
documents regarding same. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

5. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE TECHNOLOGY STRATEGIC PLAN, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary:  Due to Departmental transition, a Technology Department Strategic Plan was not 
presented to or adopted by City Council.  James Lewis, the City’s Director of Technology, has worked diligently 
since his start with the City in early May to complete a Departmental assessment, and to map out a Strategic 
Plan for future Departmental development.   
 
The Plan aims to set the course for development of digital city capabilities while building skills and capacities in-
house, and leveraging technology to provide better organizational controls and resource management, and 
improved systems and service delivery in order to meet the City’s strategic goals.    
 
The Technology Department Strategic Plan will be presented for City Council’s review and consideration.  
 
Key discussion points:   

• Angela Fritz, Executive Director of Information Services gave a brief overview of the item. 
• James Lewis, Director of Technology presented the Technology Strategic Plan and outlined the goals. 
• Mayor Pro Tem McConathy stated this is a great plan with such short notice and thanked James Lewis 

for his efforts. 
 
Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to adopt the Technology Strategic 
Plan. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

6. REVIEW AND DISCUSS TECHNOLOGY PERSONNEL NEEDS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary:  As presented in the Technology Department Strategic Plan, based on industry standards 
and organizational needs, the Department is drastically understaffed.  This has led to an unstable, reactionary 
environment focused on mainly desktop support instead of proactive systemic solutions.     
 
Staff recommends immediately creating the following position:   

• Technology Specialist (position reassigned to another Department in 2012) 
 
The total annual estimated cost for the position including benefits is: $60,314.  A budget adjustment to fund the 
position is included as an upcoming Agenda item for City Council consideration.  The second and third 
necessary positions, Administrative Assistant, and Database/Systems Administrator, are included as part of the 
proposed FY2015 Budget Priorities. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Angela Fritz gave an overview of the item and presented the needs/justification for the requested 
position. 



PAGE 7 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

• The general consensus of Council was to proceed with the request by staff to add one (1) Technology 
Specialist position at this time. 

 
Action:  Councilor Bolf made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve one Information Technology 
Specialist position. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1804, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, BUDGET AMENDMENT 14-15 IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $15,079.00 FOR THE ADDITION OF AN INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SPECIALIST.   
Executive Summary:  In the previous Agenda item, Executive Director of Information Services, Angela Fritz, 
requested the addition of an Information Technology Specialist. If City Council authorizes the position, a Budget 
Amendment is needed to fund this position for the remainder of FY2014. 
 
Budget Amendment 14-15, in the amount of $15,079.00 will provide funding for an Information Technology 
Specialist for the remainder of FY2014.    
 
Budget Amendment 14-15 is included as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1804.  In order to add this position in 
FY2014, staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1804 as presented. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary regarding Resolution No. R-1804. 
 
Action:  Councilor Grigar made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve Resolution No. R-1804, a 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 14-15 in 
the amount of $15,079.00 for the addition of an Information Technology Specialist. The motion carried by a 
unanimous vote of those present. 
 

8. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1801, A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRIORITIES FOR FY2015.  
Executive Summary:  During the FY2015 Budget process, staff reviewed the current Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP) and is recommending that a total of twenty-five (25) projects be addressed in FY2015. Exhibit “A” to 
Resolution No. R-1801 lists the twenty-five (25) individual projects. The Planning Commission met on May 21, 
2014, and also recommended approval of the projects proposed for the FY2015 CIP.  These projects were also 
presented to City Council at the May 27, 2014 City Council Workshop. 
 
Existing or proposed funding is available for all or a portion of twenty (20) of the Capital Projects that will be 
addressed in FY2015.  There are two (2) projects for which funding needs have not been determined.  The 
three (3) remaining Capital Projects are not completely funded.  Funding for these projects may include the 
issuance of Certificates of Obligation or other funding sources.  Funding for these projects will be addressed 
during FY2015.   
 
Approval of Resolution No. R-1801 will establish the City’s FY2015 Capital Improvements Plan and allow for 
the projects to be properly included in the proposed FY2015 Budget.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution 
No. R-1801. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Joyce Vasut gave an overview of the item regarding Resolution No. R-1801 and the City’s FY 2015 
Capital Improvements Plan. 

 
Questions: 

• Councilor Benton expressed concern with #11 – Traffic signal Reading Road at Town Center Boulevard 
and asked how urgent it is.  

• John Maresh explained that is tied to a development agreement. The developer that is working on the 
project from Fire Station 2 will trigger when they have to put up fifty percent (50%) of the money for that 
traffic signal. There is a timeframe by which the City has to come up with the remaining fifty percent 
(50%). They are getting close to the triggering point.  

• Councilor Grigar asked if the items are the twenty-five in each of the two areas that surfaced to the top. 
• Joyce Vasut explained staff looked at the 2014 list and any projects that were not complete or not 

substantially complete by September 30th  were left on the list. Staff then looked at 2015 in the five year 
plan and pulled those out that staff felt needed to rise to the top. A lot of these are projects that are 
started that we need to complete that we have County mobility funding. We need to move on that 
project so we do not lose the funding. #11 that was referred to is based on the development agreement 



PAGE 8 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

that we think will need action during FY2015. The developer will pay one-half and we have requested 
the other half from the RDC. 

• Items 15, 16, and 17 are all GRP projects that are part of the Subsidence mandate we need to get 
done.  At this time, all except three are funded in one way or another with available funds. The other 
three, which is Airport Road and Bryan Road that was discussed at the Workshop meeting. Airport 
Road and Bryan Road will need additional funding and we discussed certificates of obligation and 
Council felt they could agree to that. Staff will bring back those options along with the budget. The 
majority of these will be funded in the fiscal year. 
 

Action: Councilor Grigar made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve Resolution No. R-1801, a 
Resolution approving Capital Improvement Plan Priorities for FY2015. The motion carried by a unanimous vote 
of those present.  

 
9. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1802, A RESOLUTION APPROVING 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRIORITIES FOR FY2016 TO FY2019.  
Executive Summary:  Pursuant to the City Charter which requires a five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), 
staff has prepared a proposed schedule for Capital Projects in FY2016, FY2017, FY2018 and FY2019.  The 
development of the CIP for FY2016 to FY2019 is based on several factors, including but not limited to: 
 

• Deadline for compliance with the Fort Bend Subsidence District mandate,  
• Availability of Fort Bend County Mobility Funds, 
• Possibility of a City Bond Election in 2015, 
• Results of the City Facilities Assessment, and  
• Needs Identified in the Five Year Strategic Plan.  

 
The proposed FY2016-FY2019 CIP was attached to Resolution No. R-1802 as Exhibit “A” and will allow City 
Council to approve the proposed FY2016-FY2019 Capital Improvement Plan for the City of Rosenberg.  Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1802. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Joyce Vasut gave an overview of the item regarding Resolution No. R-1802. Exhibit A to Resolution No. 
R-1802 was included in the agenda packet.  

 
Questions: 

• Councilor Euton – FY2017 Streets and Drainage – 3rd Street at Intersection with Avenue E – what does 
that entail? 

• John Maresh stated this is a carryover project that has been on the CIP for several years and has never 
been ranked high enough to be funded. It is at the intersection of 3rd Street where there is a rise in the 
street and a hump as you approach Avenue N. It would be to cutout that section of 3rd Street and 
reconstruct it. 

• FY2018 – Brooks Avenue what is the plan? 
• This is a long range future project that was placed on the list recently. That would be an improvement 

project to reconstruct that street with curb and gutter. 
• FY 2019 – Klauke Road extension – is that still on our radar? 
• It is long range for 2019. There have been discussions about addressing some connectivity and other 

ways.  
• FY2018 – Brazos River Trail Project – Councilor Euton stated she objected to that project because 

some of the residents would be displaced in the north area of town. 
• Darren McCarthy, Director of Parks and Recreation stated it has nothing to do with residential 

displacement. It is a paddle trail utilizing the resources of the Brazos River. Fort Bend Green at the 
direction of Judge Hebert just completed a three year master plan study of that. Councilor McConathy 
was part of the group in the Rosenberg segment. That will be coming to Council in a future Workshop 
after the budget is complete. Mayor Morales, Councilor McConathy and Robert Gracia have copies of 
that master plan. Staff plans to distribute to Council when it is brought to Council in a Workshop. 

• Councilor Grigar – FY2018 – Streets and Drainage – Avenue C Extension; Avenue D Street Paving and 
Drainage – is that in connection to get an east/west connection because of railroad crossing closures? 

• John Maresh stated that is specifically the crossing and east to Rawson Road and would connect there. 
That is the only access in and out over that grade crossing that would provided that connectivity. 

• Avenue D – this is long range. We have been focusing with our CDBG funds to try to get the 
infrastructure of the sanitary sewer replaced. The application we have before the County now is for 
waterline replacements. We hope to complete that in the next 3 to 5 years and then we could do some 
street and sidewalk improvements. 



PAGE 9 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

• Councilor Benton – FY 2018 – move Avenue D street paving and drainage up. Move up Avenue N, 
Tobola Street, Avenue O and Avenue P. Re-evaluate Avenue F and Jeanetta street drainage and 
improvements. Concern with 3rd Street intersection with Avenue M – does not see a problem there. 

• John Maresh states that 3rd Street intersection with Avenue M is a carryover project that has been on 
the list.   

• FY2017 – FM 723 from Highway 90 to FM 359 TxDOT – is that part of our funding? 
• The reason some of those projects are on the list is in support of TxDOT.  If that project becomes a 

priority and there is some funding available by TxDOT, TxDOT looks for support from the local 
communities. 

• Mayor Pro Tem McConathy recapped the item. Council was asked to review this because we are 
required every five years and to adopt this plan, however; next year, Council’s ranking could change a 
lot of this and is subject to changing each year.  

 
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve Resolution No. R-1802, a 
Resolution approving Capital Improvement Plan Priorities for FY2016 to FY2019. The motion carried by a 
unanimous vote of those present. 
 

10. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1803, A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY2015 
BUDGET PRIORITIES.  
Executive Summary:  As part of the FY2015 Budget process, each Department was asked to submit their 
needs, not including operational expenses, for FY2015. The needs were submitted as either a (1) capital 
request (over $100,000), (2) a supplemental request (under $100,000) or (3) a personnel request.  The majority 
of the items requested were identified during the strategic planning process. 
 
Once the requests were compiled, City management (Department Directors) met and prioritized the requests.  A 
listing of requests, as prioritized by management, has been included for your review along with each individual 
request form, as submitted by the Departments.   
 
The Budget Priorities were presented at the May 27, 2014 City Council Workshop for discussion.  
 
Resolution No. R-1803, allows City Council to approve the Budget Priorities for FY2015.  This Resolution allows 
City staff to determine the number of items that can be funded and included in the proposed FY2015 Budget.  
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1803. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Joyce Vasut gave an overview of the item regarding Resolution No. R-1803. 
• The City Secretary shelving will not be funded until the facilities assessment is complete. Some of the 

items have different funding sources and may not fund in the order presented. 
 

Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve Resolution No. R-1803, a 
Resolution approving FY2015 Budget Priorities. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

11. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1799, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, BUDGET AMENDMENT 14-13 IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $3,640,270.00, TO FUND THE CITY’S PORTION OF THE ROSENBERG BUSINESS 
PARK, ADDITIONAL AWARDS FOR THE BUSINESS ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM, AND POLICE 
VEHICLE COMPUTER REPLACEMENTS.  
Executive Summary:  During the March 13, 2014 meeting of the Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC), 
the Board approved Resolution No. RDC-88, approving the Budget Amendment to fund $1,700,000 for the 
City’s portion of the Rosenberg Business Park Project.  The Funding Agreement between the City of Rosenberg 
and the RDC stated that the RDC would advance the City’s portion of the funding for the Rosenberg Business 
Park and the City would reduce the debt due to the City from the RDC by the same amount. 
 
During the May 12, 2014 meeting of the Business Assistance Grant Review Committee, additional grants were 
awarded to local businesses.  In FY2011, $100,000 was allocated for the Business Assistance Grant.  This 
budget adjustment will budget the remaining balance of $56,269.61 to fund additional Business Assistance 
Grants in FY2014. 
 
The Rosenberg Police Department CJIS compliance has determined that twenty (20) Mobile Data Terminals 
(MDTs), currently installed in active patrol vehicles will not meet the security requirements mandated by the 
State of Texas at the end of December 2014.  These vehicles are contributing to the Fleet Replacement Fund, 
which includes the replacement of the MDTs.  It is recommended to replace the non-compliant MDTs in this 



PAGE 10 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

fiscal year and when the vehicle comes up for replacement the MDT will be reassigned to the new replacement 
vehicle. 
 
Budget Amendment 14-13 was included as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1799.  Staff recommends approval 
of Resolution No. R-1799 as presented. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Joyce Vasut gave an overview of the item regarding Resolution No. R-1799 and explained the Budget 
Amendment. 

 
Questions: 

• Councilor Benton asked what is the overtime building fund. 
• It is an accounting terminology and is something other than a building. 
• Would the Business Assistance Grant be to pay for what the Committee has already approved? 
• It is to put the budget in place for grants the Committee approved.  
• What is the $1.7 million for the Business Park for? 
• We have a development agreement that states that the City and the RDC will provide water, sanitary 

sewer, roads and other infrastructure at a 50/50 split between the City and the RDC. The City asked the 
RDC to advance fund the City’s portion and the City would reduce the RDC’s debt by that amount. That 
means that RDC is funding the entire $3.4 million and we will forgive them $1.7 million of their debt. 
RDC is using their cash to pay the $3.4 million. The City will pay RDC back by reducing their debt 
payment to the City.  

• Is this agreement in compliance with Section 8.02 of the Charter? 
• Lora Lenzsch, City Attorney explained the agreement was made several years ago. She assumes the 

City was in compliance with the Charter. She believes that part of the Charter was amended in the last 
Charter election. The City has already approved this amount and you are budgeting pursuant to the 
development agreement but that will be left to Council’s discretion. 

• Mayor Pro Tem McConathy explained that the RDC according to its Charter and By-Laws is allowed to 
do that.  

• Councilor Grigar added it was for economic development. There was a caveat in the agreement about 
the property tax. A comparison was made with what was going to be put into this.  The $3.4 million was 
for infrastructure to extend sanitary sewer, water and drainage.   No other money was put into a budget. 

 
Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve Resolution No. R-1799, a 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 14-13 in 
the amount of $3,640,270.00, to fund the City’s portion of the Rosenberg Business Park, additional awards for 
the Business Assistance Grant Program, and Police vehicle computer replacements. The motion carried by a 
vote of 5 to 1 as follows:  Yeses:  Mayor Pro Tem McConathy, Councilors Pena, Euton, Grigar and Bolf.  
No: Councilor Benton. 

 
12. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1800, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, BUDGET AMENDMENT 14-14 IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $6,737,157.00 FOR CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2014 AND GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2014.  
Executive Summary:  During the January 21, 2014 meeting, City Council approved Ordinance No. 2014-02 
authorizing and ordering the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014 for the Dry Creek Drainage 
Project in the amount of $1,565,000.   
 
During the May 20, 2014 meeting, City Council approved Ordinance No. 2014-22 authorizing and ordering the 
issuance of Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014 for the Lift Station No. 11 Replacement and the Sanitary 
Sewer Pipe Bursting Projects in the amount of $5,000,000.  Ordinance Nos. 2014-02 and 2014-22 have not 
been included with this item due to their size.  Should City Council wish to review this documentation, it will be 
available in the City Secretary’s office for review.  
 
Budget Amendment 14-14, in the amount of $6,737,157.00, will record bond proceeds for General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2014, and Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014, and fund the capital expenditures for the 
construction phase of the Dry Creek Drainage Project, Lift Station No. 11 Replacement and the Sanitary Sewer 
Pipe Bursting Projects.   
 
Budget Amendment 14-14 is included as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1800.  Staff recommends approval of 
Resolution No. R-1800 as presented. 
 



PAGE 11 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

Key discussion points: 
• Joyce Vasut gave an overview and explained the background on the item. 

 
Action: Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton to approve Resolution No. R-1800, a 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 14-14 in 
the amount of $6,737,157.00 for Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014 and General Obligation Bonds, Series 
2014.  
 
Questions: 

• Councilor Grigar asked what the construction phase of the Dry Creek Drainage Project entailed. 
• John Maresh explained that will be another box culvert under Louise Street.  

 
Upon voting the motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

13. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1805, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
APPOINTMENT OF AN INTERIM CITY ATTORNEY.  
Executive Summary:  This item has been added to the Agenda In order for City Council to discuss and 
consider the appointment of an Interim City Attorney.  Should City Council choose an individual or firm to fulfill 
this role, the attached Resolution No. R-1805 will accommodate such action.  
 
Once selected, the name of individual or firm will be included in the Resolution under Section 1. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Robert Gracia, City Manager gave an overview of the item. 
• The general consensus of Council was to retain Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. as 

the Interim City Attorney 
 

Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Bolf to approve Resolution No. R-1805, a 
Resolution authorizing the appointment of Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. as Interim City 
Attorney. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

14. CONSIDER MOTION TO ADJOURN FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to adjourn for Executive Session at 
9:08 p.m. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

15. HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO CONSULT WITH ATTORNEY TO RECEIVE LEGAL ADVICE ON LEGAL 
MATTERS PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.071 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE; TO DELIBERATE 
POTENTIAL PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, LEASE, OR VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 551.072 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE; AND, TO DELIBERATE PERSONNEL 
MATTERS REGARDING THE APPOINTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT OF CITY MANAGER, AND TO 
DELIBERATE THE EMPLOYMENT, EVALUATION AND DUTIES OF POLICE CHIEF AS AUTHORIZED BY 
SECTION 551.074 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE. 
An Executive Session was held to consult with attorney to receive legal advice on legal matters pursuant to 
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code; to deliberate potential purchase, exchange, lease, or value of 
real property pursuant to Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code; and, to deliberate personnel matters 
regarding the appointment and employment of City Manager, and to deliberate the employment, evaluation and 
duties of Police Chief as authorized by Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

16. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Mayor Pro Tem McConathy adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 10:27 
p.m. 
 

17. ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
• A Special Council Meeting will be held on Monday, June 23, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
18. ADJOURNMENT. 

There being no further business Mayor Pro Tem McConathy adjourned the meeting at 10:28 p.m. 
 
 



 
PAGE 1 of 2 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 23, 2014 

***DRAFT*** 
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 23rd day of June, 2014, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a Special Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor 
Cynthia McConathy  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1 
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Dwayne Grigar  Councilor, District 3 
Amanda Bolf   Councilor, District 4 
 
ABSENT 
William Benton  Councilor at Large, Position 1 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia  City Manager 
Christine Krahn  Acting City Secretary 
George Hyde  Interim City Attorney 
John Maresh   Assistant City Manager for Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 
Angela Fritz   Executive Director of Information Services 
James Lewis   Director of Technology 
Tommy Havelka  Police Officer 
John Johnson  Police Officer  

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of 
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order 6:00 p.m. 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at 
this time.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act, the City Council is restricted from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential 
address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or 
Regular Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) 
minutes.  Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the 
agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves 
by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  HEAR AND DISCUSS PROPOSALS FROM THE FOLLOWING FIRMS FOR CITY ATTORNEY 
SERVICES, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY  
a) Denton, Navarro, Rocha, Bernal, Hyde & Zech, P.C.; 
b) Olson & Olson, LLP;  
c) Randle Law Office, Ltd., LLP; and, 



 
PAGE 2 of 2 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 23, 2014 

***DRAFT*** 
 

d) Ross, Banks, May, Cron & Cavin, P.C. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Lisa Olmeda, Human Resources Director provided a handout to Council for the presentations 
and provided a brief outline of the process to be used.  The handout will be attached to the 
minutes. 

• The following law firms gave their presentation in the order as listed below: 
 Denton, Navarro, Rocha, Bernal, Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 Olson & Olson, LLP 
 Randle Law Office, Ltd., LLP 
 Ross, Banks, May, Cron & Cavin, P.C. 

• Each firm was allowed thirty minutes for their presentation and for Council questions. 
 

2.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1807, A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING 
A FIRM TO SERVE IN THE POSITION OF CITY ATTORNEY; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A LEGAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH SAID FIRM AND/OR ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTATION REGARDING 
SAME.  
 
Key discussion points: 

• After Council discussion regarding the firms the general consensus of Council was to select 
Denton, Navarro, Rocha, Bernal, Hyde & Zech, P.C. 

 
Action:  Councilor Bolf made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve Resolution No. 
R-1807, a Resolution designating Denton, Navarro, Rocha, Bernal, Hyde & Zech, P.C. to serve in the 
position of City Attorney; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate, for and on behalf of the City, a 
Legal Services Agreement with said firm and/or all necessary documentation regarding same. The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

3.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 8:38 p.m. 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Christine Krahn, Acting City Secretary  



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

B Resolution No. R-1819 - Acceptance of Drainage Easement 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1819, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute and 
accept, for and on behalf of the City, a Drainage Easement between the City of Rosenberg and Sidney 
Mellon and Harry Lee Mellon for drainage facilities to be constructed by the City, generally located west of 
Bamore Road and associated with the CenterPoint Lateral Improvements Project. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1819 
 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney  DNRBHZ/rl   
[X] City Engineer  
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In order to complete the final phase of the Bamore Road Improvement Project, easements are required to 
accommodate the construction of an extension of the existing CenterPoint Lateral Drainage Channel.  This 
channel provides the drainage outfall for the improvements to Bamore Road, and drains to Seabourne 
Creek. A drainage easement has been negotiated with the property owners Sidney Mellon and Harry Lee 
Mellon for this final phase of Bamore Road Improvements.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1819, authorizing the Mayor to execute and accept the 
drainage easement. If approved, the fully executed easement will be attached to the Resolution as Exhibit 
“A”.    
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1819 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 
AND ACCEPT, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, A DRAINAGE EASEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG AND SIDNEY MELLON AND HARRY LEE MELLON FOR 
DRAINAGE FACILITIES TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY THE CITY, 
GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF BAMORE ROAD AND 
ASSOCIATED WITH THE CENTERPOINT LATERAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Drainage Easement 

between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Sidney Mellon and Harry Lee Mellon to 

convey an easement necessary for drainage facilities to be constructed by the City, 

generally located west of Bamore Road and associated with the CenterPoint Lateral 

Improvements Project.   

Section 2. A copy of such Drainage Easement is attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A” and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



DRAINAGE EASEMENT 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS        § 
            §        KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND       § 
 

  That,  SIDNEY  MELLON  AND  HARRY  LEE  MELLON,  address  being  4709  Avenue  H, 

Rosenberg,  Texas  77471  (GRANTORS),  being  the  owner  in  fee  simple  of  the  hereinafter 

described property  located  in Fort Bend County, Texas, for and  in consideration of the sum of 

TEN DOLLARS AND NO/100’s ($10.00) cash to them  in hand paid by the CITY OF ROSENBERG, 

TEXAS,  address  being  P.O.  Box  32;  2110  4th  Street;  Rosenberg,  Texas  77471,  a municipal 

corporation  situated  in  Fort  Bend  County,  Texas,  (GRANTEE)  the  receipt  and  sufficiency  of 

which is acknowledged, do hereby grant and convey, unto GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, 

a drainage easement, as hereinafter described, for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, 

operating, maintaining and repairing a drainage facility, subject to the provisions and conditions 

herein stated, upon, under, over, across and along the tract or parcel of  land described  in the 

attached Exhibit “A”. GRANTEE shall perpetually maintain the facilities constructed within said 

easement. 

  GRANTORS warrant that the Easement Property granted herein is granted free and clear 

of all liens and encumbrances. 

  GRANTORS and any and all successors in interest and title to the Land and the Easement 

Property described  in Exhibit “A” attached hereto  retain  title  to all of  the oil, gas,  sulfur and 

other mineral  interests  in and under said drainage easement, but expressly waive any and all 

rights of ingress and egress to the surface thereof for the purposes of exploration, developing, 

mining, or drilling for the same; provided, however, that operations for exploration or recovery 

of  any  such  minerals  shall  be  permissible  so  long  as  all  surface  operations  in  connection 

therewith are located at a point outside of the above described drainage easement, and upon 

the  condition  that  none  of  such  operations  shall  be  conducted  so  near  the  surface  of  said 

drainage easement  so  as  to  interfere with  the  intended use  thereof or  in  any way  interfere 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1819



with,  jeopardize or endanger  the  facilities of GRANTEE or create a hazard  to  the public users 

thereof. 

  GRANTORS also convey unto GRANTEE the right to use the surface of the 25‐foot wide 

area adjacent to the east side of the drainage easement (Temporary Construction Easement), 

measured  from  the  outer  edge  of  the  width  of  said  drainage  easement,  during  the  initial 

installation  of  GRANTEE’S  facilities.    After  completion  of  construction  of  the  facilities,  said 

Temporary Construction Easement shall terminate, and GRANTEES use, ingress, and egress shall 

be  limited  to  the  drainage  easement.    GRANTEE  shall  return  the  surface  of  the  property 

described above as the “Temporary Construction Easement” in substantially the same condition 

as the surface of such property exists upon the execution of this Agreement and GRANTEE shall 

be  solely  responsible  to  repair  any  and  all  damage  to  the  surface  of  said  “Temporary 

Construction Easement”.      

  GRANTORS and any and all successors in interest and title to the Land and the Easement 

Property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto shall have the right to discharge storm water 

runoff  from  the Grantors’ property  into  said  storm drainage  easement  in  locations  and  in  a 

manner acceptable to the Grantee, said right to discharge storm water runoff shall not interfere 

with the rights herein granted to Grantee.   Said right to discharge of storm water runoff from 

the Grantors’ property shall be in accordance with the Grantee’s rules, regulations, resolutions, 

ordinances, and  requirements governing  the discharge of storm water  runoff except  that  the 

Grantee  shall  not  require  payment  by  Grantor  of  drainage  assessment  fees  related  to  the 

Seabourne  Creek Watershed.  To  have  and  hold  perpetually,  the  above  described  drainage 

easement,  together with  all  the  rights  and  appurtenances  thereto  in  anywise  belonging  to 

GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, forever. 

  In  the  event GRANTEE  shall  fail  to  substantially  complete  the  drainage  easement,  as 

hereinafter above, for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, operating, maintaining and 

repairing  a drainage  facility, within eighteen  (18) months  from  the date of execution of  this 



Agreement,  in  such event  this Agreement  shall be  considered  to be null and  void and of no 

effect.    
 

Executed this _______ day of ______________________ 2014. 
 

 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Printed Name: Sidney Mellon 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Printed Name: Harry Lee Mellon 
 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS        § 
              §      
COUNTY OF FORT BEND      §  
 
  BEFORE ME,  the  undersigned Notary  Public,  on  this  day  personally  appeared  Sidney 
Mellon and Harry Lee Mellon, known to me to be the persons whose names are subscribed to 
the  foregoing  instrument  and  acknowledged  to  me  that  they  executed  the  same  for  the 
purposes and consideration therein expressed. 
 
   
GIVEN  UNDER  MY  HAND  AND  SEAL  OF  OFFICE  THIS  ______  DAY  OF 
_______________________, A.D., 2014. 
 
 
               
              ____________________________________ 
              NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 



ACCEPTED 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 
 
___________________________ 
By:  Mayor Vincent M. Morales, Jr.  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS         § 

 § 
COUNTY  OF  FORT BEND        § 
 
BEFORE  ME,  the  undersigned  Notary  Public,  on  this  day  personally  appeared  Vincent  M. 
Morales,  Jr.,  known  to  me  to  be  the  person  whose  name  is  subscribed  to  the  foregoing 
instrument,  and  acknowledged  to  me  that  he  executed  the  same  for  the  purposes  and 
consideration therein expressed and in the capacity stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OFFICE this the              day  of _______, 2014. 
 

 
_________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 

 
 
 
After recording, return document to: 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 
City of Rosenberg 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 



CAK
Typewritten Text

CAK
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A"

CAK
Typewritten Text

CAK
Typewritten Text







CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

C Resolution No. R-1820 - Acceptance of Drainage Easement 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1820, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute and 
accept, for and on behalf of the City, a Drainage Easement between the City of Rosenberg and K & M 
Home Builders, Inc., for drainage facilities to be constructed by the City, generally located west of Bamore 
Road and associated with the CenterPoint Lateral Improvements Project. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1820 
 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney  DNRBHZ/rl   
[X] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In order to complete the final phase of the Bamore Road Improvement Project, easements are required to 
accommodate the construction of an extension of the existing CenterPoint Lateral Drainage Channel.  This 
channel provides the drainage outfall for the improvements to Bamore Road, and drains to Seabourne 
Creek. A drainage easement has been negotiated with the property owner, K & M Home Builders, Inc., for 
this final phase of Bamore Road Improvements.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1820, authorizing the Mayor to execute and accept the 
drainage easement. If approved, the fully executed easement will be attached to the Resolution as Exhibit 
“A”.    
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1820 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 
AND ACCEPT, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, A DRAINAGE EASEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG AND K & M HOME BUILDERS, INC., FOR DRAINAGE 
FACILITIES TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY THE CITY, GENERALLY 
LOCATED WEST OF BAMORE ROAD AND ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
CENTERPOINT LATERAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Drainage Easement 

between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and K & M Home Builders, Inc., to convey an 

easement necessary for drainage facilities to be constructed by the City, generally 

located west of Bamore Road and associated with the, CenterPoint Lateral 

Improvements Project.   

Section 2. A copy of such Drainage Easement is attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A” and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



Drainage Easement: 
Page 1 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS        § 
            §        KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND       § 
 

  That, K & M HOME BUILDERS,  INC.,  a  Texas  limited  liability  company,  address being 

4709 Avenue H, Rosenberg, Texas 77471  (GRANTOR(S)), being the owner  in  fee simple of the 

hereinafter described property located  in Fort Bend County, Texas, for and  in consideration of 

the  sum of TEN DOLLARS AND NO/100’s  ($10.00)  cash  to  them  in hand paid by  the CITY OF 

ROSENBERG, TEXAS, address being P.O. Box 32; 2110 4th Street; Rosenberg, Texas 77471, a 

municipal  corporation  situated  in  Fort  Bend  County,  Texas,  (GRANTEE)  the  receipt  and 

sufficiency  of  which  is  acknowledged,  do  hereby  grant  and  convey,  unto  GRANTEE,  its 

successors  and  assigns,  a  drainage  easement,  as  hereinafter  described,  for  the  purpose  of 

constructing, reconstructing, operating, maintaining and repairing a drainage facility, subject to 

the provisions and conditions herein stated, upon, under, over, across and along  the  tract or 

parcel  of  land  described  in  the  attached  Exhibit  A. GRANTEE  shall  perpetually maintain  the 

facilities constructed within said easement. 

  GRANTORS warrant that the Easement Property granted herein is granted free and clear 

of all liens and encumbrances. 

  GRANTORS and any and all successors in interest and title to the Land and the Easement 

Property described  in Exhibit “A” attached hereto  retain  title  to all of  the oil, gas,  sulfur and 

other mineral  interests  in and under said drainage easement, but expressly waive any and all 

rights of ingress and egress to the surface thereof for the purposes of exploration, developing, 

mining, or drilling for the same; provided, however, that operations for exploration or recovery 

of  any  such  minerals  shall  be  permissible  so  long  as  all  surface  operations  in  connection 

therewith are located at a point outside of the above described drainage easement, and upon 

the  condition  that  none  of  such  operations  shall  be  conducted  so  near  the  surface  of  said 

drainage easement  so  as  to  interfere with  the  intended use  thereof or  in  any way  interfere 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1820



Drainage Easement: 
Page 2 

with,  jeopardize or endanger  the  facilities of GRANTEE or create a hazard  to  the public users 

thereof. 

  GRANTORS also convey unto GRANTEE the right to use the surface of the 25‐foot wide 

area adjacent to the east side of the drainage easement (Temporary Construction Easement), 

measured  from  the  outer  edge  of  the  width  of  said  drainage  easement,  during  the  initial 

installation  of  GRANTEE’S  facilities.    After  completion  of  construction  of  the  facilities,  said 

Temporary Construction Easement shall terminate, and GRANTEES use, ingress, and egress shall 

be  limited  to  the  drainage  easement.    GRANTEE  shall  return  the  surface  of  the  property 

described above as the “Temporary Construction Easement” in substantially the same condition 

as the surface of such property exists upon the execution of this Agreement and GRANTEE shall 

be  solely  responsible  to  repair  any  and  all  damage  to  the  surface  of  said  “Temporary 

Construction Easement”.      

  GRANTORS and any and all successors in interest and title to the Land and the Easement 

Property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto shall have the right to discharge storm water 

runoff  from  the Grantors’ property  into  said  storm drainage  easement  in  locations  and  in  a 

manner acceptable to the Grantee, said right to discharge storm water runoff shall not interfere 

with the rights herein granted to Grantee.   Said right to discharge of storm water runoff from 

the Grantors’ property shall be in accordance with the Grantee’s rules, regulations, resolutions, 

ordinances, and  requirements governing  the discharge of storm water  runoff except  that  the 

Grantee  shall  not  require  payment  by  Grantor  of  drainage  assessment  fees  related  to  the 

Seabourne  Creek Watershed.  To  have  and  hold  perpetually,  the  above  described  drainage 

easement,  together with  all  the  rights  and  appurtenances  thereto  in  anywise  belonging  to 

GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, forever. 

  In  the  event GRANTEE  shall  fail  to  substantially  complete  the  drainage  easement,  as 

hereinafter above, for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, operating, maintaining and 

repairing  a drainage  facility, within eighteen  (18) months  from  the date of execution of  this 

Agreement,  in  such event  this Agreement  shall be  considered  to be null and  void and of no 

effect.    



Drainage Easement: 
Page 3 

 
 

Executed this _______ day of ______________________ 2014. 
 

K & M HOME BUILDERS, INC 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________   
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS        § 
              §      
COUNTY OF ______________________  §  
 
  BEFORE  ME,  the  undersigned  Notary  Public,  on  this  day  personally  appeared 
_______________________________,  known  to  me  to  be  the  persons  whose  names  are 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that they executed the same 
for the purposes and consideration therein expressed. 
 
   
GIVEN  UNDER  MY  HAND  AND  SEAL  OF  OFFICE  THIS  ______  DAY  OF 
_______________________, A.D., 2014. 
 
 
               
              ____________________________________ 
              NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 



ACCEPTED�
CITY�OF�ROSENBERG,�TEXAS�
�
�
___________________________�
By:��Mayor�Vincent�M.�Morales,�Jr.��
�
ATTEST:�
�
�
___________________________�
Linda�Cernosek,�City�Secretary�
�
�
�
�
THE�STATE�OF�TEXAS� � � � �§�

�§�
COUNTY��OF��FORT�BEND� �� � �§�
�
BEFORE� ME,� the� undersigned� Notary� Public,� on� this� day� personally� appeared� Vincent� M.�
Morales,� Jr.,� known� to� me� to� be� the� person� whose� name� is� subscribed� to� the� foregoing�
instrument,� and� acknowledged� to� me� that� he� executed� the� same� for� the� purposes� and�
consideration�therein�expressed�and�in�the�capacity�stated.�
�
GIVEN�UNDER�MY�HAND�AND�SEAL�OFFICE�this�the��������������day��of�_______,�2014.�
�

�
_________________________�
NOTARY�PUBLIC,�STATE�OF�TEXAS�

�
�
�
After�recording,�return�document�to:�
Linda�Cernosek,�City�Secretary�
City�of�Rosenberg�
2110�4th�Street�
Rosenberg,�Texas��77471�



CAK
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A"

CAK
Typewritten Text







CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

D Ordinance No. 2014-30 – Highway 36 Annexation  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-30, an Ordinance providing for the extension of the City 
Limits of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, by voluntary annexation of 1.00 acre tract of land in the Henry Scott 
League, Abstract 82, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, being out of and a part of the residue of that 
certain called 4.2799 acre tract (Tract 4) recorded in Volume 1274, Page 201 of the official records of Fort Bend 
County, Texas; granting to said tract of land and to all current and future inhabitants of said tract of land the 
rights and privileges of other citizens and binding said current and future inhabitants by all of the acts, 
ordinances, regulations and resolutions of said City, now in effect and to be hereafter adopted; adopting a 
service plan for the annexed area; providing a severability clause; providing for an effective date; providing for a 
savings clause and repealing conflicting ordinances or resolutions. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Ordinance No. 2014-30 
2. Charter Excerpt – Part I, The Charter, Article I, Section 1.03(c) 
3. Resolution No. R-1811 – 07-01-14 
4. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 07-01-14 

 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On July 1, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1811 accepting a petition for the voluntary annexation 
of an existing one-acre tract of land located on the south side of State Highway 36 West, between Huntington 
and Moore Bar Roads. 

 
As City Council will recall, the property was part of the Union Pacific Tracts, which were annexed by the City in 
September of 2012.  A number of the tracts had agricultural use tax exemptions and were therefore offered 
Non-Annexation Development Agreements (Agreement(s)) in accordance with State law.  The owners of the 
subject property, Bob and Antonia Gonzales, entered into one of said Agreements with the City of Rosenberg.  
Namely, the Agreement provided immunity from City taxes.  However, it did stipulate that if the property was 
developed for purposes other than agriculture, the development would constitute a petition by the owner for 
voluntary annexation of the property for full purposes by the City.  Additionally, the owner has expressed an 
interest in developing a residence on this tract and has therefore requested that it be annexed by the City for full 
purposes.  The remaining 7.3 acres would remain under the Agreement, as it would continue to be used for 
agricultural purposes, and only the one-acre tract would be subject to City taxes.  This approach is directly in 
accordance with the language in the Agreement. 

 
Per the City Charter and State law, with the petition for voluntary annexation now being accepted, it must be 
acted on by City Council within thirty (30) days of its filing.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-
30, annexing the property for full purposes. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-30 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, PROVIDING 
FOR THE EXTENSION OF THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF 1.00 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND IN THE HENRY SCOTT LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 82, 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING OUT 
OF AND A PART OF THE RESIDUE OF THAT CERTAIN CALLED 
4.2799 ACRE TRACT (TRACT 4) RECORDED IN VOLUME 1274, PAGE 
201 OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 
GRANTING TO SAID TRACT OF LAND AND TO ALL CURRENT AND 
FUTURE INHABITANTS OF SAID TRACT OF LAND THE RIGHTS AND 
PRIVILEGES OF OTHER CITIZENS AND BINDING SAID CURRENT 
AND FUTURE INHABITANTS BY ALL OF THE ACTS, ORDINANCES, 
REGULATIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF SAID CITY, NOW IN EFFECT 
AND TO BE HEREAFTER ADOPTED; ADOPTING A SERVICE PLAN 
FOR THE ANNEXED AREA; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE AND REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES OR 
RESOLUTIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas finds that it 

received a request for annexation from Baldemar R. Gonzales, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes as Exhibit “A”, the owner of a 1.00 acre of land 
included in a Non-Annexation Development Agreement; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas (the “City”) finds 

that it executed with Baldemar R. Gonzales, the landowner (the “Owner”), a Non-
Annexation Development Agreement for eligible property on September 7, 2012, as 
authorized by City Council on June 19, 2012, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
for all purposes as Exhibit “A”; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds the eligible 

property (the “Property”) is located in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of 
Rosenberg and is contiguous to the City Limits, which is more particularly described in 
Exhibit “A”, and a map of the described area in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds the Owner 

agreed not to use the Property for any use other than for agriculture, and agreed not to 
construct, or allow to be constructed, any buildings on the Property that would require a 
building permit if the Property were in the City limits; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds the Owner 

has proposed to construct buildings on the Property that would require building permits 
if the Property were in the City limits, and the Owner’s proposed use of the Property is 
other than for agriculture; and, 



2 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds pursuant to 

the Agreement such acts by Owner constitute a petition for voluntary annexation by the 
Owner; and the Owner hereby consents to such annexation as though a petition for 
such annexation has been tendered by the Owner; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds pursuant to 

the Agreement Owner acknowledges that the Agreement serves as an exception to 
Local Government Code Section 43.052, requiring the City to use certain statutory 
procedures, including notices and hearing; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds Chapter 43 

of the Texas Local Government Code, and the City Charter of the City of Rosenberg, 
Texas, authorize the extension of boundaries through the annexation of areas adjacent 
to those boundaries; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds that the City 

has prepared a service plan for said territory which is attached as Exhibit “C” to this 
ordinance; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the procedures prescribed by the Texas Local Government Code 

and the Rosenberg City Charter and Development Agreement between the parties have 
been duly followed with respect to the annexation of the herein described territory; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on July 1, 2014, City Council heard said petition and arguments for 

and against the same and granted said petition; now, therefore, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, 

THAT: 

SECTION 1 

 All of the above premised are found to be true and correct and are incorporated 

into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

 

SECTION 2 

 The land and territory lying outside of, but adjacent to and contiguous to the City 

of Rosenberg, Texas, more particularly described  in Exhibit “A” and depicted in a map 

in Exhibit “B”  attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, is hereby 

added and annexed to the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and said territory, as described, 

shall hereafter be included within the boundary limits of said City, and the present 

boundary limits of said City, at the various points contiguous to the area described in 



3 

Exhibit “A”, are altered and amended so as to include said areas within the corporate 

limits of the City of Rosenberg, Texas.   

 

SECTION 3 

 The land and territory more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference, shall be part of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and 

inhabitants thereof shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges as citizens and shall 

be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions, and regulations of the City of Rosenberg, 

Texas.   

 

SECTION 4 

 A service plan outlining the provisions of necessary municipal services to the 

properties described in Exhibit “C” is hereby approved and the implementation of said 

plan is hereby authorized.  Such plan is attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit “C”.    

 

SECTION 5 

The land and territory described in Exhibit “A”, shall be included in an election 

district and said election district boundary shall be adjusted or reconfigured to include 

the annexed area. 

SECTION 6 

 All ordinances, parts of ordinances, or resolutions in conflict herewith are 

expressly repealed. 

 

SECTION 7 

The City Secretary is hereby directed to file with the County Clerk of Fort Bend 

County, Texas, a certified copy of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION 8  

 If any section, subsection, sentence, paragraph, phrase, word, or provision be 

found to be illegal, invalid, unconstitutional or if any portion of said properties is 



4 

incapable of being annexed by the City of Rosenberg, Texas, for any reason 

whatsoever, the adjudication shall not affect another section, sentence, phrase, word, 

paragraph or provision of this Ordinance or the application of any other section, 

sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision to any other person or portion of said 

properties, situation or circumstance, nor shall the adjudication affect any other section, 

sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision of any other ordinance of the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas. The City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid 

portions and applications of the Ordinance and would have annexed the valid properties 

without the invalid part and invalid properties and to this end the provisions of this 

Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 

SECTION 9 

 This ordinance shall be effective from and after July 15, 2014.  

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of 

____________ 2014. 

 

______________________________ 

          Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

______________________________ 

George E. Hyde, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 



May 28, 2014

Mr. Travis Tanner, AICP
City of Rosenberg
2220 4th Street
Rosenberg, Texas

Dear Mr. Tanner:

I, Baldemar R. Gonzales, would like voluntary annexation of a one-acre tract of land in
order to develop it as a residence in the near future. Per your request, attached is the
digital copy of the survey and description of said acre conducted by Charlie Kalkomey
Surveying, Inc.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Baldemar R. Gonzales

Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 1 of 9



--------
---------------

Sl;f ~ ,<q~~ r

L0"eO'RO't:!.Jis'

~

'OJ''''

(~~J'<O'"""

1 ---.~~~"

1 !,I j~I j
~ ~ G4ROA wI:" "~. c. c.MaA ,•. I "=,.25AC :
•• 2422, PC. 1627 ,a .••. a'.F.B.et ~:

-.--~ ~I i!
-- 1 !I I'

1 . _,_.," ,
(ADJ. CAllLD ,s~:r£ 218.8"s 89'02 ~

----- r",%~ ~'"
----- ~J' <0'0:= <0- ""."

~~.>~'I ----- _

1
----- _

---------- ------1

1

1

1

1

1

I
I
I
I
I
1

I
1

I
1

I

NOEl "'-"OA
k RAOI£l GARaA
CALillJ 1.052 AC

ccr: NO. 2012045200o.P.R.F.B.c.r. FNf)v /Ii

IF

~&:i'•... ';
loll~.~
~ia
'"

T RAe r TRACT i.

tOO ACRE
All TCNA Gt.oE&4RA (';(WZALES
R£SIDUE' CA/..J..£D 4.2799 AC

(TRACr ')
IQ... 1274, PC. 201

o.R.f'.B.cr.

T ~ ;., C T

ANTCNA CL£8ARA GONZAlES
RESIOLC CAUED J.8622 AC

(TRACT J)
IQ:. 1214. PC. 2'01

D.NF.a.C.r.

T R .••• C T

a
~

FNO,'/R
" 0+74.25'

FNO,' Ii r 06" W 219.02' IN 88'~
"ROE Go ItIAUJQiAlJO

•• IWT' GfIIA II. IIALDONADO
CA/..J..£D1.052 AC

(DfHIEIT ~: TRACT 71")
ccr: Ml 2007071626

ap.ItF.8.c.r.

:1

1

1

~

1

I

1

1

I
I

----i
I

it
I

STAT[ OF lEXAS

COUNTY OF fOAT BEND

flElO NOTES fOR It 1.00 ACRE
ABSTRACT 83, on Of ROSENBERG,
PART OF THE: RESIDUE or THAT
RECORDED IN 'IOlUIoIE 1274, PAGE ~
IMTH AU BEARINGS BASED UPON
TRACT, SAME BEING THE SOOTH RIG
NORTH 73 DEGREES 40 WINUTES 0
MINUTES 00 SECONDS IllEST).

~at a 10'. inch •.on rc-
H~WQy J6 (lSD-t •• t ~) for •
4.2799 ocr. tract • .am. bent th
c;;dJed J.8622 ocr. tract (Tract
R~ •• rort S-d County, r-xoa,
od~in9 1.25 acre tract rKOfOed
a.,d County, Toa.;

Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 2 of 9



CHARLIE KALKOMEY SURVEYING, INC.
AJONES&CARTERCO~ANY

6415 READING ROAD
ROSENBERG, TEXAS 77471

281 342-2033

FIELD NOTES FOR A 1.00 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN THE HENRY SCOTT LEAGUE,
ABSTRACT 83, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING OUT OF AND A
PART OF THE RESIDUE OF THAT CERTAIN CALLED 4.2799 ACRE TRACT (TRACT 4)
RECORDED IN VOLUME 1274, PAGE 201, OFFICIAL RECORDS, FORT BEND COUNTY,
TEXAS, WITH ALL BEARINGS BASED UPON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID CALLED 4.2799
ACRE TRACT, SAME BEING THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 36, AS
BEING NORTH 73 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST (CALLED NORTH 73 DEGREES
40 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST).

COMMENCING at a Yz inch iron rod found in the south right-of-way line of State Highway 36 (180-
feet wide) for the northeast comer of said residue of a called 4.2799 acre tract, same being the northwest
comer of the adjoining residue of a called 3.8622 acre tract (Tract 3) recorded in Volume 1274, Page
201, Official Records, Fort Bend County, Texas, said point also being the northeast comer of an
adjoining 1.25 acre tract recorded in Volume 2422, Page 1627, Official Records, Fort Bend County,
Texas;

THENCE South 00 degrees 55 minutes 30 seconds West (called South 01 degrees 00 minutes 51
seconds West, adjoiner called South 00 degrees 59 minutes 28 seconds West) along the east line of said
called 4.2799 acre tract and the east line of said adjoining called 1.25 acre tract, same being the west line
of said adjoining called 3.8622 acre tract, 219.42 feet (adjoiner called 219.21 feet) to a Yz inch iron rod
found for the northeast comer and Place of Beginning of the herein described tract, said point also being
the southeast comer of said adjoining called 1.25 acre tract;

THENCE South 00 degrees 55 minutes 30 seconds West (called South 01 degrees 00 minutes 51
seconds West) along the east line ofthe herein described tract and the east line of said called 4.2799 acre
tract, same being the west line of said adjoining called 3.8622 acre tract, 199.58 feet to a Yz inch iron rod
found for the southeast comer of the herein described tract;

THENCE North 88 degrees 57 minutes 06 seconds West establishing the south line of the herein
described tract, severing said called 4.2799 acre tract, 219.02 feet to a Yz half inch iron rod found for the
southwest comer of the herein described tract, said point being in the west line of said called 4.2799 acre
tract, same being the east line of an adjoining called 1.052 acre tract (Exhibit "A", Tract "B") recorded
under County Clerk's File Number 2007071626, Official Public Records, Fort Bend County, Texas;

CHARLIE KALKOMEY (1921-2006)
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

CHARLES A. KALKOMEY
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

CHRIS D. KALKOMEY
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 3 of 9



{field Notes -1.00 Acre Tract (cont'd) Page 2

THENCE North 00 degrees 59 minutes 08 seconds East (called North 01 degree 00 minutes 51 seconds
East) along the west line of the herein described tract and the west line of said called 4.2799 acre tract,
same being the east line of said adjoining called 1.052 acre tract, at 74.25 feet pass a 'li inch iron rod
found on said line for the northeast comer of said adjoining called 1.052 acre tract, same being the
southeast comer of an adjoining called 1.052 acre tract recorded under County Clerk's File Number
2012045200, Official Public Records, Fort Bend County, Texas, and continuing for a total distance of
199.24 feet to a 'li inch iron rod found for the northwest comer of the herein described tract, same being
the southwest comer of the aforementioned adjoining called 1.25 acre tract;

THENCE South 89 degrees 02 minutes 34 seconds East (adjoiner called South 89 degrees 00 minutes
32 seconds East) along the north line of the herein described tract, same being the south line of said
adjoining called 1.25 acre tract, 218.81 feet (called 218.51 feet) to the Place of Beginning and
containing 1.00 acre ofland, more or less.

For reference and further description see Survey Plat No. R8000-421-00 prepared by the undersigned on
same date.

P:\PROJECTS\R8000-Fort Bend\419-00 Baldemar Gonzales\Survey\Legal Desc\l.OOac.docx

October 15,2012

Job Number R8000-421-00

Charlie Kalkomey Surveying, Inc.
6415 Reading Road
Rosenberg, TX 77471-5655
(281) 342-2033

Acting By/Through Chris D K omey
Registered Professional Land eyor
No. 5869
CDKalkomey@jonescarter.com

Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 4 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 5 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 6 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 7 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 8 of 9



Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 9 of 9



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

H

J

E

K

D

L

BAKER

HUNTINGTON

G

CE
CIL

 RO
BIN

OW
ITZ

M

WALNUT

MOORE BAR

BAMORE

JUNKER

GEORGE

SCOTT

RUDE

JAMES

ELM

FROST
HAMBLEN

WEST

HAPPY

OA
K

ALLEN

CANDLER

FROST

M

L

WE
ST

ALLEN

@A1640
£¤90A

I

36TH DIVISION MEMORIAL HWY

öõ529

¬«36

Å

Û

N

S

EW

Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road
Railroad

1 Acre Area of Interest
Parcel No. 0083-00-000-0779-901
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: June 10, 2014
Original Size: 8.5" x 11"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Planning\2014\0083-00-000-0779-901.mxd

1 Acre Area of Interest
within Parcel No. 0083-00-000-0779-901

City of Rosenberg, Texas
This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

1:18,000
1 inch = 1,500 feet

Scale:
or

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000
Feet

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "B" to Ordinance No. 2014-30



2012 Municipal Service Plan 
UP Tracts 

1 
 

2012 ANNEXATION 
City of Rosenberg, Texas 

Municipal Service Plan for UP Tracts 
 

Description of the area: annexation of adjacent tracts of land described in the field notes of the metes and bounds survey 
in Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2012-29, generally located north of US 90A, south of SH 36, and east of Cecil Robinowitz 
Road. 
 
Upon annexation of the area identified above, the City of Rosenberg will provide City services utilizing methods by which it 
extends services to any other equivalent area in the City. 
 
Services provided by the effective date of annexation: 
 
1. POLICE PROTECTION 
Upon annexation, the City of Rosenberg will provide police protection to the newly annexed area in the same or similar 
level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with like topography, land use and population density as 
those found within the newly annexed area.  The Police Department will have the responsibility to respond to all 
dispatched calls for service or assistance within the newly annexed area.   
 
2. FIRE PROTECTION 
Upon annexation, the City of Rosenberg will continue to provide fire protection services to the newly annexed area in the 
same or similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with like topography, land use and 
population density as those found within the newly annexed area.     
 
3. EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
The City of Rosenberg does not currently provide any emergency medical services.  
 
4. MAINTENANCE OF WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES 
The City of Rosenberg is not aware of the existence of any publicly owned water and wastewater facilities in the newly 
annexed area.  All of the newly annexed properties have existing water wells and septic systems which shall continue to 
be maintained in accordance with the City’s Code of Ordinances.   
 
5. SOLID WASTE SERVICE  
The City of Rosenberg contracts for the collection of solid waste and refuse within the corporate limits of the City.  Solid 
waste collection will be provided, within ninety (90) days after the effective date of annexation, to citizens in the newly 
annexed area at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with like topography, 
land use and density as those found within the newly annexed area. The City may negotiate with the annexed area to 
allow continued services with an existing solid waste management provider.  After the second anniversary of the 
annexation date, the City will impose fees and provide the service. 
 
If areas with private roads and/or gates are arranged so that garbage may be collected without creating a safety hazard, 
the City, at its discretion, may collect the garbage provided proper indemnification is received from the homeowners 
association or individual property owners.  The City will then impose fees and provide the service.  In the event the City 
does not collect garbage within the areas with private roads and/or gates, residents of these areas will not be billed for 
service after the two-year date. 
 
6. ROADS AND STREETS/ STREET LIGHTING  
Any and all public roads, streets, alleyways or street lighting shall be maintained to the same degree and extent that other 
public roads, streets, alleyways, and street lighting are maintained in areas of the City with like topography, land use and 
density as those found within the newly annexed area.  Private roads will remain under the ownership of the homeowners 
association and as such maintained by the association.  Roads that are not part of a homeowners association and are 
privately owned will remain under private ownership and as such maintained by the individual owner(s). 
 
7. MAINTENANCE OF PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS, AND SWIMMING POOLS 
The City of Rosenberg is not aware of the existence of any publicly owned parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now 
located in the proposed annexed area.  In the event any such parks, playgrounds, or swimming pools do exist and are 
public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the same or similar level of 
service now being provided to the other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City with like 
topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed area.  Private facilities will remain under the 
ownership of the homeowners association and as such maintained by the association.  Private facilities that are not part of 
a homeowners association and are privately owned will remain under private ownership and as such maintained by the 
individual owner(s). 
 
8. MAINTENANCE OF ANY PUBLICLY OWNED FACILITY, BUILDING  OR MUNICIPAL SERVICE 
The City of Rosenberg is not aware of the existence of any publicly owned facility, building or other municipal service now 
located in the proposed area of annexation.  In the event any publicly owned facility, building, or other municipal service 
does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas and facilities to the extent and degree and to the 
same or similar level of service now being provided to other such areas and facilities within the corporate limits of the City 
with like topography, land use and density as those found within the newly annexed areas. 
 
 
 

Exhibit "C" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 1 of 2



2012 Municipal Service Plan 
UP Tracts 

2 
 

 
 
 
9. OTHER SERVICES 
The City of Rosenberg finds and determines that such services as planning, code enforcement, animal control, parks and 
recreation, court and general administration will be made available after the effective date of annexation at the same or 
similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with similar topography, land use and density as 
those found within the newly annexed area. 
 
 
CONSTRUCTION OF ANY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED WITHIN 2 ½ YEARS. 
 
1. POLICE AND FIRE PROTECTION AND SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
The City of Rosenberg finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within   
2 ½ years of the effective date of annexation of the particular annexed area for the purpose of providing police protection, 
fire protection, or solid waste collection.  The City finds and determines that it has at the present time adequate facilities 
and other resources to provide the same type, kind and level of service and protection which is presently being 
administered to other areas already incorporated in the City of Rosenberg with like topography, land use and population 
density as those found with the newly annexed areas. 
 
2. WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES 
For the next 2 ½ years, the City of Rosenberg finds and determines that existing homes and businesses will remain on 
water wells and septic systems. Thereafter, construction of any capital improvements for water and wastewater services 
to the newly annexed area will be developed pursuant to the City’s capital improvement plan, the City’s infrastructure 
extension policies, and in accordance with the City’s Code of Ordinances.  
 
Requests from property owners and developers for municipal water and wastewater services will be considered by the 
City.  This service plan does not contain a commitment by the City to provide to the annexed area free extensions of water 
lines, free extensions of sewer lines, free fire hydrant installation or services.  Property owners and developers will be 
required to pay applicable connection fees and impact fees in addition to any participation costs involved in the 
infrastructure extension pursuant to applicable City ordinances, policies and capital improvement plan. 
 
3. ROADS AND STREETS 
The City of Rosenberg finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within  
2 ½ years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular annexed area.  Thereafter, construction of any roads 
and streets will be developed pursuant to the City’s capital improvement plan and in accordance with the City’s Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
4. MAINTENANCE OF PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS, AND SWIMMING POOLS AND ANY OTHER PUBLICLY 
 OWNED FACILITY, BUILDING OR SERVICE. 
The City of Rosenberg finds and determines it is not necessary to acquire or construct any capital improvements within    
2 ½ years of the effective date of the annexation of the particular annexed area for the purpose of parks maintenance, 
playgrounds, swimming pools and other publicly owned facility, building or service. 
 
SPECIFIC FINDINGS 
The City of Rosenberg finds and determines that this proposed service plan will not provide any fewer services and will 
not provide a lower level of service in the area being considered for annexation that were in existence in the proposed 
areas at the time immediately preceding the annexation process.  Given the proposed annexation areas’ topography, land 
utilization and population density, the service levels to be provided in the newly annexed area will be equivalent to those 
provided to other areas of the City with similar characteristics. 
 
TERMS 
This plan shall be valid for a term of ten (10) years.  Renewal of the Service Plan is at the discretion of the City of 
Rosenberg. 
 
LEVEL OF SERVICE 
Nothing in this plan shall require the City to provide a uniform level of full municipal services to each area of the City 
including the annexed areas, if different characteristics of topography, land use, and population density are considered a 
sufficient basis for providing different levels of service. 
 
AMENDMENTS 
The plan shall not be amended unless public hearings are held in accordance with Chapter 43 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. 
 

Exhibit "C" to Ordinance No. 2014-30 
Page 2 of 2



  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 1 

Sec. 1.03. Extension of boundaries. 

The boundaries of the City of Rosenberg may be enlarged and extended by the annexation of 
additional territory, irrespective of size and configuration, in any of the methods hereinafter designated:  

(a) Extending limits in accordance with Article 974 of the Revised Civil Statutes [V.T.C.A., Local 
Government Code § 43.021]. Where such additional territory adjoins the corporate limits of the 
city and contains three or more inhabitants qualified to vote for members of the state legislature, 
such adjacent territory may be annexed to the city in the manner and in conformity with the 
procedure set forth in Article 974 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Texas of 1925, as now 
or hereafter amended [V.T.C.A., Local Government Code § 43.021].  

(b) Extension of limits by election. The city council shall have the power to order an election or 
elections for the purpose of annexing territory lying adjacent to the City of Rosenberg. Such 
order shall include the survey notes of the area sought to be annexed. The city council shall 
give notice of the date and place of balloting at such election by publication of the order in a 
newspaper of general circulation published in the City of Rosenberg at least thirty days prior to 
the date on which such election is ordered. The residents of the City of Rosenberg and the 
territory sought to be annexed, who are qualified to vote for members of the state legislature, 
shall be qualified to vote at such election. The city council shall, at its next meeting, canvass the 
return of such election and if a majority of the votes cast at such election by the residents of 
Rosenberg, and if a majority of the votes cast at such election by the residents of said territory 
being considered for annexation, favor such annexation, the council shall declare the said 
territory annexed to the City of Rosenberg, and the boundary limits of the City of Rosenberg 
shall thereafter be extended and fixed so as to include such territory.  

(c) Annexation of unoccupied lands on petition of owners. The owner or owners of any land which 
is without residents, contiguous and adjacent to the city may, by petition in writing to the city 
council, request the annexation of such contiguous and adjacent land, describing it by metes 
and bounds. The city council shall thereafter, and not less than five and not more than thirty 
days after the filing of such petition, hear such petition and the arguments for and against the 
same, and grant or refuse such petition as the city council may see fit. If the city council grants 
such petition, it may by proper ordinance receive and annex such territory as a part of the city.  

(d) Annexation by amendments to charter. The boundary limits of the city may be fixed and 
additional territory added or annexed thereto by amendment to the Charter of the city.  

(e) Extending limits by action of the city council. The city council shall have power by ordinance to 
fix the boundary limits of the City of Rosenberg and to provide for the extension of said 
boundary limits and the annexation of additional territory lying adjacent to said city, with or 
without the consent of the residents or the owners of land within the territory annexed. Upon the 
introduction of such an ordinance in the city council it may be passed on the first reading, and 
thereafter shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation published in the City of 
Rosenberg one time, and shall not thereafter be finally acted upon until at least thirty days have 
elapsed after the publication thereof. Any citizen of the City of Rosenberg, or resident or owner 
of land within the territory to be annexed shall have the right to contest said annexation by filing 
with the city council a written petition setting out his reasons for said contest and after such 
citizen, resident or owner of land within the territory shall have been given an opportunity to be 
heard, said ordinance, in original or amended form, as said city council in its judgment may 
determine, shall be finally acted upon and any territory so annexed shall be a part of the City of 
Rosenberg.  

(f) Annexation by any other method provided by law. Additional territory may also be annexed to 
the city in any manner and by any procedure that may now be provided by law or that may be 
hereafter provided by law. Same shall be in addition to the methods hereinabove provided.  

(g) Annexed territory to become part of the city. Upon completion of any one of the procedures 
hereinabove provided, the territory so annexed shall become a part of the city, and said land 

reneel
Rectangle

reneel
Text Box
Code of Ordinances ExcerptPart I - The CharterArticle I. - Form of Government and Boundaries



  Rosenberg, Texas, Code of Ordinances  Page 2 

and its residents and future residents shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of other 
citizens of the city and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions and regulations of the 
city.  

State law reference— Voter approval required under certain circumstances, V.T.C.A., Local 
Government Code § 43.022; annexation of sparsely occupied areas, V.T.C.A., Local 
Government Code § 43.028.  



RESOLUTION NO.  R- 1811

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

ROSENBERG, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE FILING OF A PETITION BY

LAND OWNER FOR ANNEXATION.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the City Charter, the City accepts the filing of the petition
for annexation (attached hereto as Exhibit "A"); and,

WHEREAS, the City shall, not less than five ( 5) and not more than thirty ( 30)
days after the filing of said petition, hear said petition and grant or refuse said petition;
and,

WHEREAS, the land described in said petition is contiguous and adjacent to the

City of Rosenberg; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG:

Section 1.     City Council has determined that said petition for annexation has

been filed and said petition for annexation shall be heard on July 15, 2014, and notice to

be sent to petitioner,  and City Council will listen to arguments for and against the

petition and take action at that time.    

kk

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this l day of    , ,:.. A 2014.

ATTEST:       APPROVED:

inda Cernosek, City Secretary ince      .  oral-:, J     (;;;-- 1

F tOSFN



Exhibit" A" to Resolution No. R- 1812

Page 1 of 9

May 28, 2014

Mr. Travis Tanner, AICP

City of Rosenberg
2220 4th Street

Rosenberg, Texas

Dear Mr. Tanner:

I, Baldemar R. Gonzales, would like voluntary,annexation of a one-acre tract of land in
order to develop it as a residence in the near future. Per your request, attached is the
digital copy of the survey and description of said acre conducted by Charlie Kalkomey
Surveying; Inc.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

alie4/Yto14/ bn.5toe"

Baldemar R. Gonzales



N

W
.

C
LC

C
e

m
s

li

o

y
x

g
C

L ta

i
8
g
  ;   

1111
CD

b
w

z,.,8
le13-

1.

ra
l

F

P
/

IVY
u

a

4 114

S
c
u

r
..•

./
r
m

m
s
m

s
a
.

41
C

I.
4

4
3

3
.
4r

r
0
3
7
3
,

1      :

4
h
.
a

m
.W

rO
M

V

S
O

4
1
3
1
1
2

Z
.
a

s
s
m

s
A

s
-e

s
t

m
:

o
r.

s
s
.
M

S
    _

t4
.

3
1

4
0

d
n
a

y
t

N
4
a
n

a
r

r
n

o
3

         
1

--

8
4

8
V

   :'
E

u
ke

Is

i
e

N

r
a

r
e

a
I
a

, 3
A

34171---_  '     .
K

6
6

1
3

.
9

0
.

6
5
'.

0
N

t
i

b
..

r
m

.
m

w
a
r
m

y
7

F

114!%
..1

g  ; 
ny11. u

l
t
i

6
p

I
I

I



Exhibit" A" to Resolution No. R- 1812
Page 3of9

CHARLIE KALKOMEY SURVEYING, INC.
A JONES& CARTER COMPANY

6415 READING ROAD

ROSENBERG, TEXAS 77471

281 342-2033

FIELD NOTES FOR A 1. 00 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN THE HENRY SCOTT LEAGUE,
ABSTRACT 83, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING OUT OF AND A
PART OF THE RESIDUE OF THAT CERTAIN CALLED 4.2799 ACRE TRACT ( TRACT 4)
RECORDED IN VOLUME 1274, PAGE 201, OFFICIAL RECORDS, FORT BEND COUNTY,

TEXAS, WITH ALL BEARINGS BASED UPON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID CALLED 4.2799
ACRE TRACT, SAME BEING THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 36, AS
BEING NORTH 73 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST( CALLED NORTH 73 DEGREES
40 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST).

COMMENCING at a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the south right-of-way line of State Highway 36 ( 180-
feet wide) for the northeast corner of said residue of a called 4.2799 acre tract, same being the northwest
corner of the adjoining residue of a called 3. 8622 acre tract ( Tract 3) recorded in Volume 1274, Page
201, Official Records, Fort Bend County, Texas, said point also being the northeast corner of an
adjoining 1. 25 acre tract recorded in Volume 2422, Page 1627, Official Records, Fort Bend County,
Texas;

THENCE South 00 degrees 55 minutes 30 seconds West ( called South 01 degrees 00 minutes 51
seconds West, adjoiner called South 00 degrees 59 minutes 28 seconds West) along the east line of said
called 4.2799 acre tract and the east line of said adjoining called 1. 25 acre tract, same being the west line
of said adjoining called 3. 8622 acre tract, 219.42 feet( adjoiner called 219.21 feet) to a%z inch iron rod
found for the northeast corner and Place of Beginning of the herein described tract, said point also being
the southeast corner of said adjoining called 1. 25 acre tract;

THENCE South 00 degrees 55 minutes 30 seconds West ( called South 01 degrees 00 minutes 51

seconds West) along the east line of the herein described tract and the east line of said called 4.2799 acre
tract, same being the west line of said adjoining called 3. 8622 acre tract, 199.58 feet to a'/ s inch iron rod
found for the southeast corner of the herein described tract;

THENCE North 88 degrees 57 minutes 06 seconds West establishing the south line of the herein
described tract, severing said called 4.2799 acre tract, 219.02 feet to a' A half inch iron rod found for the
southwest corner of the herein described tract, said point being in the west line of said called 4.2799 acre
tract, same being the east line of an adjoining called 1. 052 acre tract( Exhibit "A", Tract "B") recorded

under County Clerk's File Number 2007071626, Official Public Records, Fort Bend County, Texas;    •

CHARLIE KALKOMEY( 19212006)  CHARLES A. KALKOMEY CHRIS D. KALKOMEY

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR



Exhibit" A" to Resolution No. R- 1812

Page 4 of 9

field Notes— 1. 00 Acre Tract( cont' d) Page 2

THENCE North 00 degrees 59 minutes 08 seconds East( called North 01 degree 00 minutes 51 seconds

East) along the west line of the herein described tract and the west line of said called 4.2799 acre tract,
same being the east line of said adjoining called 1. 052 acre tract, at 74.25 feet pass a '/ 2 inch iron rod
found on said line for the northeast corner of said adjoining called 1. 052 acre tract, same being the
southeast corner of an adjoining called 1. 052 acre tract recorded under County Clerk's File Number
2012045200, Official Public Records, Fort Bend County, Texas, and continuing for a total distance of
199.24 feet to a %2 inch iron rod found for the northwest corner of the herein described tract, same being
the southwest corner of the aforementioned adjoining called 1. 25 acre tract;

THENCE South 89 degrees 02 minutes 34 seconds East( adjoiner called South 89 degrees 00 minutes

32 seconds East) along the north line of the herein described tract, same being the south line of said
adjoining called 1. 25 acre tract, 218. 81 feet ( called 218. 51 feet) to the Place of Beginning and
containing 1. 00 acre of land, more or less.

For reference and further description see Survey Plat No. R8000-421- 00 prepared by the undersigned on
same date.

October 15, 2012

Job Number R8000-421- 00

Charlie Kalkomey Surveying, Inc.
6415 Reading Road
Rosenberg, TX 77471- 5655

Pa c.9. ,; _ ;   281) 342-2033

Actin B / Throu Chris D omey
4, . Fesso.;. p +    

Acting By Through
suRdE Registered Professional Lana '. s • eyor

No. 5869

CDKalkomey@j onescarter.corn
P:\ PROJECTS1R8000- Fort Bend\419- 00 Baldemar Gonzales\Survey\Legal Desc11. 00ac.docx



Exhibit" A" to Resolution No. R- 1812

Page 5 of 9

1111101111 r 11131 111101 5 KS 2012109M

STATE OF TEXAS I II AGRE_ N f

i
COUNTY OF FORT BEND

CHAPTER 43 TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 43.035 and 212.172 of the Texas Local
Government Code by and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas  ( the  " City")  and the

undersigned property owner(s)  ( the " Owner"). The term " Owner" includes all owners of the

Property.

WHEREAS, the Owner owns a parcel of real property (the " Property") in Fort Bend County, Texas,

which is more particularly and separately described in the attached Exhibit " A"; and

WHEREAS, the Owner desires to have the Property remain in the City' s extraterritorial jurisdiction,
in consideration for which the Owner agrees to enter into this Agreement; and

WHEREAS,  this Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 43.035 and 212. 172 of the Texas
Local Government Code, in order to address the desires of the Owner and the procedures of
the City; and

WHEREAS, the Owner and the City acknowledge that this Agreement is binding upon the City
and the Owner and their respective successors and assigns for the term (defined below) of this
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement is to be recorded in the Real Property Records of Fort
Bend County, Texas.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

Section 1.  The City guarantees the continuation of the extraterritorial status of the Owner' s
Property, its immunity from annexation by the City, and its immunity from City property taxes, forthe term of this Agreement, subject to the provisions of this Agreement. Except as provided in
this Agreement, the City agrees not to annex the Property, agrees not to involuntarily institute
proceedings to annex the Property, and further agrees not to include the Property in a statutory
annexation plan for the Term of this Agreement.

Section 2. The Owner covenants and agrees not to use the property for any use other than for
agriculture, consistent with Chapter 23 of the Texas Tax Code, except for any now-existing single-
family residential use of the property, without the prior written consent of the City.
The

related development document

agrees that

the Property with Fort

any type subdivision

y until the

Property has been annexed into the City.

During the duration of this Agreement, the Owner covenants and agrees not to construct, orallow to be constructed, any buildings on the Property that would require a building permit if the
Property were in the City limits, subject to the exceptions set forth herein. The Owner reserves theright to construct, repair, or renovate buildings on the Property that are consistent with its
agricultural use without obtaining a building permit or triggering annexation. Further, the Owner
may construct an accessory structure to an existing single-family dwelling. Additionally, Owner
reserves the right to construct a new residence on the Property, provided that Owner provides

1



Exhibit" A" to Resolution No. R- 1812

Page 6 of 9

written notice of the construction to the City so that the parties can modify the description of the
land subject to this Agreement.

The Owner acknowledges that each and every Owner of the Property must sign this Agreement
in order for the Agreement to take full effect, and the Owners who sign this Agreement
covenants and agrees, jointly and severably, to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City
against any and all legal claims, by any person claiming an ownership interest in the Property
who has not signed the Agreement, arising in any way from the City' s reliance on this
Agreement.

Section 3. The Owner acknowledges that if any plat or related development document is filed
in viokotion of this Agreement, nr if the Owner commences revelopment of the Property in
violation of this Agreement, then in addition to the City' s other remedies, such act will constitute
a petition for voluntary annexation by the Owner, and the Property will be subject to annexation
at the discretion of the City Council. The Owner agrees that such annexation shall be voluntary
and the Owner hereby consents to such annexation as though a petition for such annexation
had been tendered by the Owner.

If annexation proceedings begin pursuant to this Section, the Owner acknowledges that this
Agreement serves as an exception to Local Government Code Section 43.052, requiring a
municipality to use certain statutory procedures, including notices and hearings under an
annexation plan. Furthermore, the Owner hereby waives any and all vested rights and claims
that they may have under Section 43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government
Code that would otherwise exist by virtue of any actions Owner has taken in violation of Section
2 herein.

Section 4. Pursuant to Sections 43.035( b)( 1)( B) of the Texas Local Government Code, the City is
authorized to enforce all of the City' s regulations and planning authority that do not interfere
with the use of the area for agriculture, wildlife management, or timber. The City has the
discretion to enforce regulations applicable to: firewtrks, non-agriculture burning, flood plain
management, and billboards within the area.   The City states and specifically reserves its
authority pursuant to Chapter 251 of the Texas Local Government Code to exercise eminent
domain over property that is subject to a Chapter 43 and/ or Chapter 212 development
agreement.

Section 5. In accordance with Texas Local Government Code 212. 172( d), the initial term of this
Agreement ( the " Initial Term") is fifteen ( 15) years from the date that the City Manager' s
signature to this Agreement is acknowledged by a public notary; the total duration of this
Agreement and any successive renewals or extensions may not exceed forty-five ( 45) years.
Unless each party agrees to a subsequent term, the City will commence the annexation of the
Property at the end of the Initial Term. In connection with annexation pursuant to this Section,
the Owners hereby waive any vested rights they may have under Section 43.002( a)(2) and
Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government Code that would otherwise exist by virtue of any
plat or construction any of the Owners may initiate during the time between the expiration of
this Agreement and the institution of annexation proceedings by the City.

Section 6. Any person who sells or conveys any portion of the Property shall, prior to such sale or
conveyance, give written notice of this Agreement to the prospective purchaser or grantee,
and shall give written notice of the sale or conveyance to the City. Furthermore, the Owners and
the Owners' heirs, successors, and assigns shall give the City written notice within 14 days of any
change in the agricultural exemption status of the Property. A copy of either notice required by
this Section shall be forwarded to the City ai the following address:

City of Rosenberg
Attn: City Manager
2110 4th Street

2



Exhibit" A" to Resolution No. R- 1812
Page 7 of 9

Rosenberg, Texas 77471

Section 7.  This Agreement shall run with the Property and be recorded in the Real Property
Records of Fort Bend County, Texas.

Section 8. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any covenant of this Agreement is
void or unenforceable, including the covenants regarding involuntary annexation, then the
remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 9.  This Agreement may be enforced by any Owner or the City by any proceeding at
law or in equity. Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver to enforce the provisions of this
Agreement thereafter.

Section 10.    No subsequent change in the law regarding annexation shall affect the
enforceability of this Agreement or the City' s ability to annex the properties covered herein
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

Section 11. Venue for this Agreement shall be in Fort Bend County, Texas.

Section 12.  This Agreement may be separately executed in individual counterparts and, upon
execution, shall constitute one and same instrument.

Section 13.   This Agreement shall survive its termination to the extent necessary for the
implementation of the provisions of Sections 3, 4, and 5 herein.

In witness whereof, the above and foregoing provisions are hereby agreed to, and accepted
and approved by the parties.

OWNER"

By:

Printed  . 86f, CLLeYittat`/    Y)14, rd's

Name:   A'YI4QofQ.  & n mid

Date: 7- 3

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF FORT BEND

dkr
This trument os acknowledged before me on the , J1 day of     :  .. A 2012,  by

t
r

r    ;//.,   _  21- i ••    own to me to be the person whose n• f e is , f bscribed to
1 c-, I,vr :   G'- t''  t ;

th-  • -.. d-F• Ins      - ( an• acknowledged to me that he/ she executed the same for the

purposes and consideration therein expressed.   

arg

y UNDA CERNOSEK      •
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES    ,     Notary Public, State of Texas

3



Exhibit" A" to Resolution No. R- 1812
Page 8 of 9

1

CITY"

City of Rosenberg, Texas

I

By: 1 11 I
C:. 4/  '

l

Printe•

Name: Jack S. Hamlett

Title:  City Manager

Date:     3- 47 a/ tV

1
THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF FORT BEND

14

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the 4_ day of 1- 6 .'. F.i'    1112, by Jack S.

Hamlett, as City Manager of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, known to me Jr. be the person whose
name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the
same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed.

I argl LINDA CERNOSEK 41/4.CA
ike

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

APT 17, 26 Notary Public, State of Texas

NOTARY SEAL)

i

After Recording, Return To:

Travis Tanner

City of Rosenberg
2220 Fourth Street

Rosenberg, Texas 77471

I

a

4

1



Exhibit" A" to Resolution No. R- 1812

Page 9 of 9

EXHIBIT " A"

Owner:      Gonzales Bob& Antonia

1012 1st ST

Rosenberg, TX 77471- 3250

Fort Bend Central Appraisal District Tax Account Number. 0083- 00- 000- 0779- 901

Legal Description: 0083 HY SCOTT, TRACT 1- 4( PT), ACRES 8.2961, GUEBARA PARTITION

FILED AND RECORD50
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS

Dianne Uilson, County Clerk
Fort Send County, Texas

1,

September 26, 2012 0?: 57: 26 p0

91
FEE:    Z. 00 LU 2t121o9 5
REE

f

t



PAGE 1 of 2 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JULY 01, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 E. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1811, A RESOLUTION 
ACCEPTING THE FILING OF A PETITION BY LAND OWNER FOR ANNEXATION.  
Executive Summary: City staff has received a request for the voluntary annexation of an existing 
one-acre tract of land.  The property is located on the south side of State Highway 36 West, 
between Huntington and Moore Bar Roads.  It was part of the Union Pacific Tracts, which were 
annexed by the City in September of 2012.  A number of the tracts had agricultural use tax 
exemptions and were therefore offered Non-Annexation Development Agreements 
(Agreement(s)) in accordance with state law.  The owners of the subject property, Bob and 
Antonia Gonzales, entered into one of said Agreements with the City of Rosenberg.  Namely, the 
Agreement provided immunity from City taxes.  However, it did stipulate that if the property was 
developed for purposes other than agriculture, the development would constitute a petition by the 
owner for voluntary annexation of the property for full purposes by the City.  Additionally, the 
owner has expressed an interest in developing a residence on this tract and has therefore 
requested that it be annexed by the City for full purposes.  The remaining 7.3 acres would remain 
under the Agreement, as it would continue to be used for agricultural purposes, and only the one-
acre tract would be subject to City taxes.  This approach is directly in accordance with the 
language in the Agreement. 
 
In previous instances, staff has been directed to move forward per the terms of the Agreements.  
Resolution No. R-1811 is being presented as a petition for annexation to be accepted by City 
Council.  Per the City Charter and state law, once the petition is accepted by City Council via the 
Resolution, it must be acted on no sooner than five (5) days nor later than thirty (30) days.  
Should City Council approve the request for voluntary annexation, staff will prepare an Ordinance 
for annexation of the property for placement on a future City Council Agenda within that 
timeframe. 
 

 F. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1812, A RESOLUTION 
ESTABLISHING A PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM MAINTENANCE PROGRAM.  
Executive Summary:  This Agenda item was first discussed at the May 27, 2014 City Council 
Workshop Meeting.  There were no recommended changes to the policy; however, specific 
sidewalks were discussed and it was suggested that existing sidewalk inventory maps that had 
previously been presented to City Council be reviewed by City staff.  The 2012 sidewalk inventory 
maps have been reviewed by staff and are attached for reference.  An excerpt from the 2010 
Transit and Pedestrian Study is also attached as it contains a more comprehensive, but less 
detailed, sidewalk inventory map.  These maps will be taken into consideration as staff 
implements the policy. 
 
As discussed on May 27, the City has budgeted $250,000 for the repair of existing sidewalks.  
Staff believes a policy should be developed and adopted by City Council for spending the funds 
and repairing sidewalks.  This would result in areas and specific sidewalks being prioritized based 
on necessity, safety, and circulation, among other things. 
 
The attached Pedestrian System Maintenance Program (PSMP) Guidelines were drafted 
following research of other cities’ policies and needs within the City.  Following is a summary of 
the draft PSMP Guidelines: 
 
Goals of the Program: 

• Protect pedestrians from injury in City rights-of-way 
• Protect the City’s investment in sidewalks and the pedestrian system 
• Manage landscaping in a way that protects sidewalks 

 
Geographic Area Prioritization Criteria – Geographic areas shall be prioritized based on the 
following: 

• Inclusion in the City’s Master Sidewalk Plan (Resolution No. R-896) 
• Population density of abutting area 
• Relative age of abutting area 

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 1 of 2 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JULY 01, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

 
Specific Sidewalk Evaluation Criteria: 

• Horizontal separation 
• Vertical separation 
• “Cross sloping” 
• Holes or gaps in sidewalk 

 
Action Schedule – Action shall be taken by the City to replace, repair, or remove sidewalks based 
on the following: 

• Safety issues (e.g., prior accidents) 
• Location and surrounding land uses 
• Severity of condition, proximity to other sidewalks needing repair, availability of 

resources, etc. 
 
Options available to the City for taking action: 

• Sidewalk removal 
• “Ramping” or “lifting” of sidewalks 
• Sidewalk Replacement 

 
Additionally, the proposed PSMP Guidelines aim to address issues associated with landscaping 
on private property and its effects on the pedestrian system.  When sidewalks are damaged due 
to landscaping, prior to the City investing in any repairs, the property owner may be required to 
remove the landscaping, install root barriers, etc. 
 
Finally, the draft PSMP Guidelines provide for “Advanced Replacement Partnerships” in which a 
homeowners association (HOA), for example, could request sidewalk repairs provided said 
repairs meet the above program criteria, 60 percent (60%) of abutting property owners agree in 
writing, and the entity or group requesting the repairs shares in 50 percent (50%) of the overall 
cost. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1812, establishing a Pedestrian System 
Maintenance Program. 
 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve the 
Consent Agenda Items A-F. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

E Resolution No. R-1787 – Professional Services Agreement for 
Comprehensive Plan 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1787, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Professional Services Agreement by and between the City and 
Kendig Keast Collaborative for professional planning services related to the Comprehensive Plan in an 
amount not to exceed $91,860. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

410-0000-550-4365 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4  
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Resolution No. R-1787 
2. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 06-24-14 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 05-06-14 
4. Professional Services/Engineering Project Review Committee Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 02-11-14 
 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As discussed at the May 6 and June 24, 2014 City Council meetings, on February 11, 2014, the 
Professional Services/Engineering Project Review Committee recommended that Kendig Keast 
Collaborative be selected to update the City’s Comprehensive Plan (Plan). The Plan update is a budgeted 
project.  The Plan was last updated in 1995.  Since that time, the City’s population has grown by over 50 
percent (50%) from 23,000 to approximately 35,000.  The rate of growth has increased recently and is 
expected to continue given the widening of U.S. 59/I-69 and build-out of neighboring communities 
immediately north of Rosenberg.  Therefore, it is critical for the City to plan and determine what 
infrastructure improvements and development standards are needed to accommodate future growth and 
development. 
 
The scope of the Plan update will generally include the following per Exhibit “A”, Scope of Services: 

• Community Overview (e.g., data collection, analysis of existing ordinances and planning 
documents, demographic analysis, population projections) 

• Community engagement (community workshop, facilitation of Advisory Committee meetings, use 
of MindMixer virtual town hall website, public hearings, engagement of Planning Commission and 
City Council, establishment of “guiding principles,” etc.) 

• Land Use and Character (infrastructure analysis, land use projections, growth and development 
plan/map) 



• Transportation (existing thoroughfare plan analysis, consideration for bicycle and pedestrian 
mobility, access management analysis, updated Master Thoroughfare Plan map) 

• Plan Implementation (action plan to implement the above comprehensive plan elements) 
 
The consultant, Kendig Keast Collaborative, has extensive experience working with communities without 
zoning, similar to Rosenberg, to implement their plans.  The above scope of work will be completed for an 
amount not to exceed $91,860, which is well within the budgeted amount of $100,000.  The Professional 
Services Agreement with Kendig Keast Collaborative is attached to Resolution No. R-1787 as Exhibit “A”.  
At the May 6 meeting, this item was tabled for further discussion at a Workshop.  The item was 
subsequently placed on the June 24 Workshop Agenda for City Council to discuss the scope of the Project 
going forward.  Staff presented additional information and the consultant answered questions posed by 
City Council.  The general consensus of Council at the time was to move forward with the project.  Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1787. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1787 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND KENDIG KEAST 
COLLABORATIVE FOR PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICES 
RELATED TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $91,860. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a Professional 

Services Agreement (Agreement), by and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and 

Kendig Keast Collaborative for professional planning services related to the 

Comprehensive Plan.    A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M, Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 



 
Page 1 of 10 

 

  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

for 
  ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 

§    KNOW BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 
 
 
This Agreement made this ____ day of July, 2014, by and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, acting by 
and  through Robert Gracia, City Manager, hereinafter  referred  to  as  the  ʺCLIENT,ʺ and Kendig Keast 
Collaborative, an  Illinois Corporation, acting by and  through  its President, Mr. Bret C. Keast, with an 
office located at 1415 Highway 6 South, Suite A‐300, Sugar Land, Texas, 77478, hereinafter referred to as 
the ʺCONSULTANT,ʺ do hereby make and enter into the following Agreement. 
 
  ARTICLE I 
  CONSULTANT 
 
1.1    The  CONSULTANT,  as  an  independent  contractor,  covenants  and  agrees  to  perform  the 

professional planning services related to the Comprehensive Plan as described in Article II, Scope 
of Services.  Such services shall be performed by the CONSULTANT in strict accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement and for the consideration stated.  Subject to the provisions of Article VI 
below, CONSULTANT covenants and agrees to perform the specific services identified in Exhibit 
“A”  –  Scope  of  Services.   The CONSULTANT  shall  complete  the  Scope  of  Services  and  shall 
submit  reports  to  the  CLIENT  as  deemed  appropriate  by  CONSULTANT  or  agreed  by  and 
between CONSULTANT and CLIENT. 

 
1.2  The CONSULTANT  shall provide  its  services under  this Agreement with  the  same degree  of 

care,  skill,  and  diligence  as  is  ordinarily  provided  by  a  professional  planner  under  similar 
circumstances for the preparation of a Comprehensive Plan and to which the Agreement applies. 

 
  ARTICLE II 
  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
2.1    The CONSULTANT will perform the professional planning services related to the development 

of the Comprehensive Plan as set forth in Exhibit ʺAʺ – Scope of Services, which is attached and 
made a part of this Agreement. 

 
2.2    Pursuant  to  this Agreement,  the  CLIENT  shall  have  the  option  to  obtain  the  services  of  the 

CONSULTANT  to  perform  Additional  Services.    Such  Additional  Services  needs  will  be 
documented  in  a progress  report,  and  then  authorized  through  a written Amendment  to  this 
Agreement. As  agreed mutually  by  the CLIENT  and  the CONSULTANT, Additional  Services 
that are described in a written Amendment to this Agreement shall include a description of the 
additional  work,  associated  compensation,  and  time  schedule,  as  applicable.    By  way  of 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1787



 
Page 2 of 10 

 

illustration, matters which may constitute Additional Services shall  include, but are not  limited 
to, the following: 
(a) Requested additional workshops or meetings other than the number identified in the Scope 

of  Services  and  project  schedule  that  require  added  preparation  or  follow‐up  or  displace 
other planned trip activities; 

(b) Requested  additional  trips  other  than  the  number  identified  in  the  Scope  of  Services  and 
project schedule; 

(c) Requested additional days or nights added  to a scheduled  trip  that require additional  time 
and direct expenses  (e.g., meals, hotel nights, extended  car  rental and gasoline use, airline 
change fees, extended airport parking, etc.); 

(d) Other  requested work  tasks,  study activities, or documentation not  foreseen or  specifically 
identified in the Scope of Services; 

(e) Requested additional deliverables (e.g., executive summary) or additional physical copies of 
deliverables,  including  the  submission  at key milestones of draft  and  final written  reports 
and maps other than those specified, or in a quantity greater than the number identified, in 
the Scope of Services; 

(f) Requested additional revisions (individual or cumulative) to draft and final deliverables that 
are beyond the single comprehensive round of revisions that are to be collected, consolidated, 
and annotated by the CLIENT as outlined in the Scope of Services; 

(g) Requested  review  and  provision  of  recommendations  relating  to  other  planning  or 
development  related  issues  and  matters  other  than  those  for  which  such  findings  and 
recommendations are specified in the Scope of Services; 

(h) Further  requested  changes  to  a deliverable which  the CONSULTANT has  already  revised 
based  on  review  comments  and which  the CLIENT  has  already  accepted  as  revised,  and 
which  the  CONSULTANT  determines  to  be  significant  and  substantive  changes  to  a 
deliverable  already  at  a  point  of  substantial  completion  in  accordance with  the  Scope  of 
Services and available budget; 

(i) Requested incorporation of substantive revisions into the draft or final plan document which 
have arisen  since  the plan, ordinance, document, maps or other materials delivered  to  the 
CLIENT were originally prepared; and 

(j) Other  related  or  unrelated  professional  planning  services  that may  be  requested  by  the 
CLIENT.   

 
Any services requested or made necessary by CLIENT and provided by CONSULTANT that are 
not  in  the  CONSULTANT’s  determination  within  the  Scope  of  Services  are  considered 
Additional Services. Any  time Additional Services needs are  identified  in a progress report, an 
effort will be made to determine if it is possible to amend the Scope of Services in a manner that 
eliminates or minimizes any increase in the total cost of the project, subject to written consent of 
CLIENT.  Otherwise  a  written  amendment  to  this  Agreement  will  be  prepared  for  CLIENT 
authorization of Additional Services that will increase the total cost of the project.  

 
ARTICLE III 

  CONSULTANT PERSONNEL 
 
3.1    The  CONSULTANT  represents  that  it  has  or  will  secure  at  its  own  expense,  all  personnel 

required  in  performing  the  services  under  this  Agreement.    Such  personnel  shall  not  be 



 
Page 3 of 10 

 

employees of or have any contractual relationship with the CLIENT. 
 
3.2    The CONSULTANT may contract with Subconsultants for portions of the work or services under 

this  Agreement  with  the  prior  written  approval  of  the  CLIENT.  Any  work  or  services 
subcontracted hereunder shall be  specified by a written Agreement and shall be  subject  to  the 
provisions of this Agreement.   

 
  ARTICLE IV 
  SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
4.1    The  CLIENT  agrees  to  provide  the  CONSULTANT  with  support  services,  that  are  readily 

available, during conduct of the services listed in Article II, Scope of Services.   Support services 
will include the services described in Exhibit “B” – Support Services, which is attached and made 
a part of this Agreement. Support services that are not provided by the CLIENT may warrant a 
contract  amendment  and  be  subject  to  additional  compensations  as  set  out  in  Article  VI, 
Compensation to Consultant. 

 
4.2    To the extent authorized by law, the readily available existing data and documentation obtained 

by  the CLIENT  that  are  relevant  to  the  accomplishment  of  the  Scope  of  Services  specified  in 
Article II shall be made available by the CLIENT for use by the CONSULTANT. 

 
4.3    The CLIENT shall consider and act on all documents and project work  items submitted by  the 

CONSULTANT that require review, comments or approval by the CLIENT within a timeframe 
specified  in  Exhibit  “A”  Scope  of  Services  and/or  in  the  project  schedule  so  as  to  enable  the 
CONSULTANT to complete the work on schedule as provided in Article V of this Agreement. 

 
4.4    The  CLIENT  agrees  to  provide  the  CONSULTANT  with  support  services,  that  are  readily 

available, needed to organize, schedule, notify, provide meeting locations, conduct meetings, and 
prepare minutes  of meetings  including  committees, workshops,  public meetings,  and  public 
hearings  as  described  in  Article  II,  Scope  of  Services.    The  CONSULTANT  will  advise  and 
coordinate with the CLIENT to accomplish these support services. 

 
4.5    In the event CLIENT fails to provide any of the needed Support Services in a timely or adequate 

manner,  as  documented  in  a  progress  report,  any  additional  time  or  expenses  incurred  or 
required by CONSULTANT as a result of such  failure shall be compensated by CLIENT  in  the 
same manner as, and shall be considered to be, Additional Services. 

 
  ARTICLE V 
  TIME OF PERFORMANCE 
 
5.1    The CONSULTANT shall commence services upon execution of  this Agreement and  receipt of 

written Notice‐to‐Proceed from the CLIENT. 
 
5.2    The CONSULTANT shall make a good faith effort to complete the services described in Article II, 

Scope of Services within twelve (12) months from receipt of written Authorization to Proceed by 
the CLIENT, unless one or more of the following occur: 
(a)  This Agreement is terminated in accordance with Article X, Changes or Termination;  



 
Page 4 of 10 

 

(b)  The Scope of Services and/or Time of Performance are changed in accordance with Article II, 
Scope of Services or Article X, Changes or Termination; or 

(c)  Matters documented by CONSULTANT in progress reports render such completion schedule 
impossible or impracticable. 

 
5.3    The completion schedule set forth in Paragraph 5.2 may be subject to causes that result in delay 

over  which  neither  the  CONSULTANT  nor  the  CLIENT  has  any  control.    Notification  and 
justification for any such delays identified by the CONSULTANT must be  included  in progress 
reports.  The schedule of work will be extended to include any such delays pursuant to Article X, 
Changes or Termination. 

 
5.4    This Agreement shall  terminate upon  the CLIENT’s  final acceptance of work completed by  the 

CONSULTANT, unless otherwise terminated or modified as hereinafter provided. 
 
  ARTICLE VI 
  COMPENSATION TO CONSULTANT 
 
6.1  The CLIENT shall compensate the CONSULTANT for the professional services performed under 

this Agreement.  For the Basic Services described in Exhibit “A” Scope of Services under Article 
II, Scope of Services, the CLIENT shall pay to the CONSULTANT on a basis of reimbursement of 
Actual Costs Incurred (“ACI”) in an amount not‐to‐exceed ninety‐one thousand eight hundred 
and sixty dollars ($91,860.00).   ACI  includes salary costs, overhead, direct expenses, and profit.  
The maximum ACI amount may be modified pursuant to Article X, Changes or Termination, in 
the  event of  increased  cost,  change  in  the Scope of Services, an  extension of  time beyond  that 
specified in paragraph 5.2, or an increase or decrease in the complexity or character of the work. 
In addition to ACI, CLIENT agrees to compensate CONSULTANT for any Additional Services, as 
authorized  in writing  in accordance with paragraph 2.2.   Such Additional Services or expenses 
shall be invoiced separately by CONSULTANT and paid by CLIENT upon receipt of billing for 
such services.   Such payments shall be in addition to and have no bearing on the above ACI not‐
to‐exceed amount.   Payment later than 30 days shall include interest at 1‐1/2 percent per month 
from  the date  the CONSULTANT  receives confirmation of CLIENT  receipt of  the  invoice until 
the date CONSULTANT receives payment.  Such interest is due and payable when the overdue 
payment is made and is in addition to the above stated total contract amount. 

 
6.2    Payment shall be made by  the CLIENT upon  receipt of a statement  from CONSULTANT. The 

billing statement, certified true and correct by CONSULTANT, shall show the total amount paid 
and the amount due and payable as of the date of the current statement.  Amounts paid and due 
for Additional Services shall be identified on a separate invoice.  Each invoice is due and payable 
by the CLIENT upon receipt by the CLIENT, subject to the terms of paragraph 6.1. 

 
6.3    The  terms  of  this Agreement  are  contingent  upon  sufficient  appropriations  and  authorization 

being made by  the CLIENT  for  the performance of  this Agreement.    If at any  time during  the 
period of performance under this Agreement, sufficient appropriations and authorization are not 
made by  the CLIENT,  this Agreement  shall  terminate upon written notice being given by  the 
CLIENT  to  the CONSULTANT.    In  such  event, CLIENT  shall  comply with  the  provisions  of 
Paragraph  10.4  below.  The  CLIENTʹs  decision  as  to  whether  sufficient  appropriations  are 
available shall be accepted by the CONSULTANT and shall be final. 



 
Page 5 of 10 

 

  ARTICLE VII 
  PRODUCT OF SERVICES, COPYRIGHT 
 
7.1    The CONSULTANT and the CLIENT mutually agree that reports, maps and materials prepared 

or developed under the terms of this Agreement shall be delivered to and become the property of 
the CLIENT.  The CONSULTANT shall have the right to retain copies and to utilize the product 
of services for marketing purposes, except for any confidential information, as defined in Article 
XI, hereof. 

 
7.2    The CONSULTANT shall furnish the CLIENT with the number of copies of reports as shown in 

Article II, Scope of Services. 
 
7.3    Nothing produced in whole or in part by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall be the 

subject of an application  for copyright by or  for  the CONSULTANT.   The CONSULTANT will 
use existing proprietary software as required. 

 
  ARTICLE VIII 
  PRIVATE INTERESTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS AND CONSULTANT 
 
8.1    No employee, agent, or member of the local public body of the CLIENT shall have any financial 

interest, direct or indirect in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof, except as allowed in Section 
3.1 of this Agreement. 

 
  ARTICLE IX 
  CERTIFICATIONS OF CONSULTANT 
 
9.1    The CONSULTANT has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide 

employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and it has 
not paid or  agreed  to pay  any  company or person, other  than  a bona  fide  employee working 
solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, any commission, percentage, brokerage fee, or any other 
consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. 

 
9.2    The CONSULTANT presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, 

which would  conflict  in  any manner  or  degree with  the  performance  of  services  under  this 
Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE X 

  CHANGES OR TERMINATION 
 
10.1   Except as expressly described above regarding Additional Services, this Agreement may not be 

altered, changed or amended except by instrument in writing executed by the parties hereto. 
 
10.2   The CLIENT may,  from  time  to  time,  request  changes  in  the Scope of Services  and/or  time of 

performance  for  the services of  the CONSULTANT to be performed hereunder.   Such changes, 
including any increase or decrease in the amount of the CONSULTANTʹS compensation, which 
are  mutually  agreed  upon  by  and  between  the  CLIENT  and  the  CONSULTANT,  shall  be 
incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.   



 
Page 6 of 10 

 

 
10.3   This Agreement may  be  terminated  before  the  termination  date  stated  in Article  V,  Time  of 

Performance, by any of the following conditions: 
 
(a)  Right of Either Party to Terminate for Cause ‐ This Agreement may be terminated by either of 

the parties hereto  for  failure by  the other party  to perform  in a  timely manner and proper 
manner  its obligations under this Agreement.   A signed, written notice of such termination 
shall be delivered to the other party by express mail with point‐by‐point tracking and such 
termination shall take effect twenty (20) days after the notice is deposited in the express mail, 
provided  that  the  failure  to  perform  has  not  been  remedied  by  that  time.    By  such 
termination, neither party may nullify obligations already incurred for performance or failure 
to perform before the date of termination. 

 
(b)  Right of the CLIENT to Terminate for Convenience ‐ This Agreement may also be terminated 

by the CLIENT for reasons other than failure by the CONSULTANT to perform in a timely 
manner and proper manner its obligations under this Agreement.  A signed, written notice of 
such termination shall be delivered to CONSULTANT by fax or registered or certified mail 
and  such  termination  shall  take  effect not  less  than  seven  (7) days  following  the date  the 
notice is received by the CONSULTANT. 

 
10.4   Upon receipt of a notice of termination under any of the conditions under Paragraphs 6.3 or 10.3 

above, the CONSULTANT shall, unless the notice otherwise directs, immediately discontinue all 
services  in  connection with  the performance  of  this Agreement.   Within  thirty  (30) days  after 
receipt of the notice of termination, the CONSULTANT shall submit a Final Statement, showing 
the  services performed under  this Agreement prior  to  the  effective date of  termination.   Such 
Final Statement shall also include any unpaid amounts or unreimbursed expenses, as well as any 
financial  obligations  incurred  by  CONSULTANT  on  behalf  of  CLIENT  and  which  cannot 
reasonably be refunded  to CONSULTANT, all of which CLIENT agrees  to pay upon receipt of 
said Final Statement.  Data and study products prepared by the CONSULTANT and paid for by 
CLIENT under this Agreement shall be delivered to the CLIENT if requested. 

 
10.5  Notwithstanding  the  provisions  of  this Article X,  the CONSULTANT  shall  not  be  relieved  of 

liability to the CLIENT for damages sustained by the CLIENT by virtue of any negligent act or 
omission or any breach of the Agreement by the CONSULTANT. 

 
  ARTICLE XI 
  CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
11.1   Any  information  determined  to  be  confidential  that  is  provided  to  or  developed  by  the 

CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement shall be kept confidential and shall not be 
made available  to any  individual or organization by  the CONSULTANT without prior written 
approval of the CLIENT. 

ARTICLE XII 
  INSPECTION OF RECORDS 
 
12.1   The  CONSULTANT  shall maintain  accounts  and  records,  including  personnel,  property  and 

financial records, adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to this Agreement and 



 
Page 7 of 10 

 

such other records as may be deemed necessary by the CLIENT to assure proper accounting for 
all  project  funds.    These  records will  be  retained  for  three  years  after  the  expiration  of  this 
Agreement. 

 
12.2   Any  time during normal business hours and as  requested by  the CLIENT,  the CONSULTANT 

shall make available to the CLIENT for examination all of  its project records with respect to all 
matters  covered by  this Agreement and will allow  the CLIENT  to  review, examine, and make 
excerpts  from  such  records,  and  to make  copies  of  all  contracts,  invoices, materials,  payrolls, 
records of personnel conditions of employment, and other data relating to all matters covered by 
this Agreement.    The  financial  records  of  the CONSULTANT  are maintained  in  its  corporate 
office located in Sugar Land, Texas, and copies will be available upon request in a timely manner 
in this office for audit purposes to the CLIENT or its authorized representative. 

 
ARTICLE XIII 
INSURANCE 

 
13.1   Insurance 
 

A.  The CONSULTANT agrees to maintain Worker’s Compensation Insurance to cover all of its 
own personnel  engaged  in performing  services  for  the CLIENT under  this  contract  in  the 
following amounts: 

 
Workmen’s Compensation:  Statutory 

 
B.    The  CONSULTANT  also  agrees  to  maintain  Commercial  General  Liability,  Business 

Automobile  Liability,  and  Umbrella  Liability  Insurance,  covering  claims  against  the 
CONSULTANT  for damages resulting  from bodily  injury, death, or property damage  from 
accidents arising  in  the  course of work performed under  this Agreement,  in  the  following 
amounts: 
 

Commercial  General  Liability  Insurance:  Personal  injury  and  property  damage  ‐‐ 
$500,000.00 combined single each occurrence and $500,000.00 aggregate; 

 
Business Automobile  Liability  for  all  vehicles:  Bodily  injury  and  property  damage  ‐‐ 
$500,000.00 combined single limit each occurrence; 

 
Umbrella Liability: $1,000,000.00 

 
  ARTICLE XIV 
  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
14.1  Neither the CLIENT nor the CONSULTANT shall be required to perform any term, condition, or 

covenant of this AGREEMENT while such performance is delayed or prevented by acts of God, 
material  or  labor  restriction  by  any  governmental  authority,  terrorism,  civil  riot,  floods, 
hurricanes, or other natural disasters, any other cause not within the control of the CLIENT or the 
CONSULTANT  that  by  the  exercise  of  due  diligence  the  CLIENT  or  the  CONSULTANT  is 
unable, wholly  or  in  part,  to  prevent  or  overcome  and  supersedes  all  prior  agreements  and 



 
Page 8 of 10 

understanding  between  CLIENT  and  CONSULTANT  concerning  the  subject  matter  of  this 
Agreement. 

 
14.2  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the CLIENT and the CONSULTANT.  

No other agreements, amendments, modifications, implied or otherwise, shall be binding on any 
of the parties unless set forth in writing and signed by both parties. 

 
14.3  The CLIENT and the CONSULTANT agree that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Texas. Any legal dispute between the parties shall be resolved in the 
following manner: 

 
The  parties will  attempt  in  good  faith  to  resolve  any  controversy  or  claim  arising  out  of  or 
relating to this Agreement promptly by negotiation between senior executives of the parties who 
have the authority to settle the controversy. 
 
The disputing party shall give the other party written notice of the dispute.  Within ten days after 
receipt of said notice, the receiving party shall submit to the other a written response. The notice 
and  response  shall  include:    (a)  a  statement  of  each  party’s  position  and  a  summary  of  the 
evidence and arguments supporting its position; and (b) the name and title of the executive who 
will  represent  the  party.    The  executives  shall meet  at  a mutually  acceptable  time  and  place 
within  twenty days of  the date of  the disputing party’s notice  and  thereafter  as often  as  they 
reasonably  deem  necessary  to  exchange  relevant  information  and  to  attempt  to  resolve  the 
dispute. 
 
If the controversy or claim has not been resolved within thirty days of the meeting of the senior 
executives, the parties shall endeavor to settle the dispute by non‐binding mediation. 
 
If the matter has not been resolved pursuant to the aforesaid non‐binding mediation procedures, 
parties are free to bring their claim in a court of law.  Venue for all actions brought pursuant to 
this agreement is in Fort Bend County, Texas; and all parties consent to Fort Bend County, Texas, 
being the exclusive  jurisdiction to resolved said claims or controversies arising pursuant to this 
agreement. 

 
14.4  If one or more of  the provisions of  this Agreement, or  the application of any provision  to any 

party or circumstance,  is held  invalid, unenforceable, or  illegal in any respect, the remainder of 
this  Agreement  and  the  application  of  the  provision  to  other  parties  or  circumstances  shall 
remain valid and in full force and effect. 

 
14.5  Any notice required to be given pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be 

in writing and shall be mailed by certified or registered mail addressed as set forth below or at 
such other address as may be specified by written notice:            

 
CLIENT:    Robert Gracia, City Manager 
    City of Rosenberg 
    2110 4th Street 
    Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

 
 



 
Page 9 of 10 

CONSULTANT:    Bret C. Keast, President 
Kendig Keast Collaborative 
1415 Highway 6 South, Suite A‐300 
Sugar Land, Texas 77478 

 
14.6    The waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a 

waiver of any subsequent breach of this Agreement. 
 
14.7    The CONSULTANT shall not assign any interest on this Agreement, and shall not transfer any 

interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written consent of 
the CLIENT thereto.  Provided however, that claims for money by the CONSULTANT from the 
CLIENT under  this Agreement may be assigned  to a bank,  trust company, or other  financial 
institution without such approval.   Written notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be 
furnished promptly to the CLIENT. 

 
14.8    Successors  and  Assigns:    The  CLIENT  and  the  CONSULTANT  each  binds  itself  and  its 

successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other parties of the Contract and to the 
successors,  executors,  administrators  and  assigns  of  such  other  parties,  in  respect  to  all 
covenants  of  this  Agreement.   Nothing  herein  shall  be  construed  as  creating  any  personal 
liability  on  the part  of  any  officer,  board member,  commissioner,  employee  or  agent  of  any 
public body, which is a party hereto. 

 
14.9    Reports and Information: The CONSULTANT, at such times and in such forms as the CLIENT 

may require, shall furnish the CLIENT such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the 
work or services undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, the cost and obligations incurred or 
to be in connection therewith, and any other matter covered by this Agreement. 

 
14.10  Incorporation of Provisions Required by Law.  Each provision and clause required by law to be 

inserted into the Agreement shall be deemed to be enacted herein and this Agreement shall be 
read and enforced as though each were included herein.   If through mistake or otherwise any 
such provision  is not  inserted or  is not correctly inserted, the Agreement shall be amended to 
make such insertion on application by either party. 

 
14.11  Waiver.  The failure on the part of any party herein at any time to require the performance by 

any other party of any portion of  this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of, or  in any 
way affect that party’s rights to enforce such provision or any other provision.  Any waiver by 
any party herein of any provision hereof shall not be taken or held to be a waiver of any other 
provision hereof or any other breach hereof. 

 
14.12  Survival.   Any and all representations and conditions made by the CONSULTANT under this 

Agreement are of the essence of this Agreement and shall survive the execution, delivery and 
termination  of  it,  and  all  statements  contained  in  any  documents  required  by  the CLIENT, 
whether delivered at the time of the execution or at a later date, shall constitute representations 
hereunder. 

 
14.13  Cumulative Remedies.  In the event of default by any party herein, all other parties shall have 

all rights and remedies afforded to it at law or in equity to recover damages and to interpret or 



 
Page 10 of 10 

enforce the terms of this Agreement.  The exercise of any one right or remedy shall be without 
prejudice to the enforcement of any other right or remedy allowed at law or in equity. 

 
14.14  State or Federal Laws.  This Agreement is performed in Rosenberg, Texas, and is subject to all 

applicable  Federal  and  State  laws,  statutes,  codes,  any  and  applicable  permits,  ordinances, 
rules,  orders,  and  regulations  of  any  local,  state,  or  federal  government  authority  having  or 
asserting jurisdiction. 

 
14.15  Equal Employment Opportunity.    In  the performance of  this Agreement,  the CONSULTANT 

will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 
religion,  age,  sex,  or  national  origin.  The  CONSULTANT  will,  in  all  solicitations  or 
advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of it, state that it is an Equal Opportunity 
Employer. 

 
14.16  Multiple Originals.   Two  (2) copies of  this Agreement are executed; each shall be deemed an 

original. 
 
 
*  *           *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
IN WITNESS HEREOF,  the parties have  executed  this Agreement  in duplicate originals  in Rosenberg, 
Texas. 
 
This                                  day of                                   , 2014. 
 
 
FOR ROSENBERG:          FOR KENDIG KEAST COLLABORATIVE: 
 
 
By:                                                   By:                                                    
  Robert Gracia    Bret C. Keast, AICP 

City Manager    President              
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 1 of 11 

Exhibit “A” 
Scope of Services 

 

Under contract to the City of Rosenberg, Kendig Keast Collaborative (KKC) will provide 
professional community planning services to assist the City in updating its Comprehensive Plan 
for guiding the long-range development and enhancement of the community. KKC will build 
upon and coordinate with other recent and concurrent planning efforts and studies to complete 
these tasks. 

KKC’s project involvement and facilitation will be carried out according to this Scope of Services 
and contingent upon the Support Services of the City outlined in Exhibit “B” to the Professional 
Services Agreement to make the best use of the available consultant budget. The City’s Project 
Director will manage the overall process and direct the consultant team in performing the project 
services. The consultant team will coordinate with other agencies and entities, as needed, in 
conjunction with the City. 

PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT 

KKC will complete project management activities in coordination with the City’s Project Director 
to ensure schedule adherence, cost control and quality assurance. These activities will include: 

� A project kick-off meeting with key City staff, via an online WebEx video or 
teleconference (following receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the City), to recap the 
scope of services and discuss detailed schedule, data/information needs and other project 
logistics. KKC will then meet with City staff for project planning and coordination 
discussions on each scheduled visit to the City. Discussions on the emerging plan 
content and overall direction will also occur during visits, as time permits, and will be 
supplemented by scheduled teleconferences and WebEx video or teleconferences to 
allow for more in-depth staff-consultant interaction. 

� Monthly submittal of written progress reports in conjunction with each monthly invoice. 
These reports will describe the project status and document significant work 
accomplished and activities scheduled for the next progress report period, as well as note 
any difficulties encountered and steps taken to address them. 

� Preparation and maintenance throughout the project of a detailed project schedule, 
including due dates for all deliverables, anticipated meeting dates, plus adequate time 
for City review/approval of deliverables. 

� Frequent communication and coordination with the City’s Project Director by email, 
WebEx video or teleconferences, and written correspondence, as appropriate. 

 

PHASE 1 – INITIATION, BACKGROUND AND COMMUNITY OUTREACH 

TASK 1 – Existing Information Assessment 

KKC will coordinate with City staff to identify and acquire available data, mapping and other 
information resources for the planning effort, both from the City and other sources. 



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 2 of 11 

Task Activities 

1. Provide City staff a checklist of typical resource items for a comprehensive planning effort, 
including other recent and/or concurrent plans and studies, and any other policy processes or 
documents that aid City decision-making. Then coordinate with staff to determine which 
items will be available for the project. 

2. Coordinate with City staff to identify key project contacts and relevant agencies and entities 
(e.g., Central Fort Bend Chamber Alliance, West Fort Bend Management District, Rosenberg 
Development Corporation, and Texas Department of Transportation). 

TASK 2 – Community Background 

KKC will compile and assess a base of information on Rosenberg’s history and setting, and 
existing conditions and outlook, focusing especially on key influences that will shape the 
community’s future. This will provide background and assumptions to support needs assessment 
and long-range planning decisions throughout the comprehensive planning process. 

Task Activities 

1. Conduct a review and evaluation of the City’s current planning documents and other 
relevant materials to understand the past and recent history of community planning efforts in 
Rosenberg and West Fort Bend County, and the key opportunities and challenges facing the 
community. 

2. Identify action items in previous plans that were successfully accomplished, remain to be 
completed, or are not likely to be pursued due to changed priorities, resource limitations, or 
other factors.  

3. Document and consider relevant regional factors, plans and projects that will influence the 
community over the 20-year planning horizon. 

4. Complete an initial review of the City’s existing development policies, regulations, 
incentives, and other factors influencing the area’s development and redevelopment potential 
and practices. 

5. Compile a summary of key indicators, from the latest available Census data and other 
sources, to illustrate historical, current and projected conditions, trends and context relevant 
to elements of the Comprehensive Plan (e.g., demographics, economy and labor force, land 
use and development, transportation and commuting, infrastructure, public services and 
facilities, housing, etc.). 

6. Prepare a set of population projections, in five-year increments through the plan horizon year 
(2035), and work toward consensus on the most likely future population range that should be 
assumed for the new Comprehensive Plan (recognizing that such projections must be 
monitored and revisited year by year as actual trends unfold). Also take into account 
projections included in other City plans and studies and forecasts produced by regional, 
state, and national entities, including the Houston-Galveston Area Council and U.S. Census 
Bureau. 

 
  



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 3 of 11 

Deliverables 

� Community Overview component to be incorporated into Chapter 1, Introduction, of the 
Comprehensive Plan and will summarize the previously mentioned task activities. Through 
narrative discussion and associated charts and graphics, this overview will summarize 
indicators, capture population projections, and highlight key planning considerations 
emerging from KKC’s initial background studies and leadership and community 
involvement activities, which will also help to focus later task work. The overview is also 
intended to avoid duplication of existing “community profile” reports and similar data 
compilations already available through local sources and/or websites (which will be cited as 
resources for obtaining more detailed community data). 

TASK 3 – Community Engagement 

KKC will coordinate with City staff to plan and facilitate a series of outreach activities intended 
to engage the community’s public and private leadership, as well as residents, business owners, 
property owners, local organizations and others interested in setting strategic priorities for the 
city’s future. Necessary coordination with other external agencies and organizations will also be 
initiated early on and throughout the process as needed for individual plan elements. The overall 
program will be designed to make the community aware of the comprehensive planning process 
and provide opportunities throughout to offer input and ideas and react to draft plan content and 
proposals. This approach will also ensure that the resulting plan reflects community values and 
priorities, and is in line with goals and expectations of the City Council and Planning 
Commission.  

Task Activities 

1. Facilitate an initial, informal Issues and Needs Workshop involving members of City 
Council, Planning Commission, and other City boards/commissions, as appropriate. The 
workshop purpose is partly orientation to the comprehensive planning process, but 
especially to obtain early input and set direction and priorities for the planning effort. 
(This workshop will be scheduled in conjunction with the same project visit as the “listening 
sessions” in the next item.) 

2. Coordinate with City staff to arrange and conduct a series of up to four (4) informal, one-
hour “Listening Sessions.” The sessions should involve a mix of residents, business and 
property owners, public officials, developers/builders/realtors, representatives of community 
organizations, and others as appropriate (e.g., high school age youth) to discuss their hopes, 
concerns and priorities for the city’s future. Each session should involve no more than 15-18 
persons to ensure effective dialogue, meaning that approximately 60-72 persons could 
potentially be engaged through this activity. 

3. Coordinate with City staff to arrange and facilitate a “big picture” outreach Community 
Workshop intended for broad public participation. The workshop will be scheduled to occur 
during the initial community engagement phase, on the same day as the small group 
Listening Sessions and the first Advisory Committee meeting.  

 The workshop will be a two-hour event held in the evening. The workshop will begin with a 
common presentation for all attendees, followed by break-out sessions for more area-specific 
discussions and engagement activities. The focus for the workshop will be:  



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 4 of 11 

� Community Workshop - Vision and Principles: Participants will contribute to the crafting 
of a new vision and the underlying principles for key elements of the Comprehensive 
Plan update, including land use and character, transportation, and implementation. The 
workshops will include visioning and other exercises to build consensus around 
clarification of issues, resolution of conflicts, and orientation to and guidance for 
subsequent chapters. 

4. Conduct four (4) meetings with a broadly representative Comprehensive Plan Advisory 
Committee. These meetings will be used in part to present individual plan elements and seek 
comments and direction from the committee. The draft plan elements will be sent to the 
committee members in advance of each meeting to give them ample time for review and 
preparation for the meetings. 

The Advisory Committee should be comprised of approximately 15-20 individuals (with 
representatives of various other agencies and organizations invited to attend as relevant 
topics are considered). The Advisory Committee will be charged with reviewing individual 
plan elements and entering into discussion and debate on all plan assumptions, themes and 
concepts and an eventual action agenda. The Advisory Committee should include several 
members of the Planning Commission, and at least one member of City Council to serve as a 
liaison on the committee throughout the process. 

KKC will conduct the first meeting with the Advisory Committee on the same day as the 
small group Listening Sessions, and the Community Workshop. The second Advisory 
Committee meeting will be scheduled to present Comprehensive Plan Chapters 1, 
Introduction, and 2, Land Use and Character. The third Advisory Committee meeting will be 
focused on Chapter 3, Transportation and the development of the Thoroughfare Plan. The 
fourth and final Advisory Committee will be scheduled in conjunction with Comprehensive 
Plan Chapter 4, Implementation. 

5. In conjunction with the second meeting of the Advisory Committee, KKC will provide an 
interim briefing to the City Council, to inform Council members of the project status and to 
ensure the plan is consistent with their expectations and policy direction. 

6. KKC will attend one (1) Planning Commission public hearing as outlined under Phase 3, 
Plan Finalization and Adoption. 

Deliverables 

� Suggested agenda items along with handouts and/or presentation materials, as appropriate, 
for each scheduled meeting and outreach activity. 

TASK 4 - MindMixer 
A Virtual Town Hall site would be established to solicit on-line and mobile community 
engagement. Using inputs from the stakeholder listening sessions, technical interviews, and 
guidance from staff, the virtual town hall would be organized to respond to the unique planning 
considerations of Rosenberg. These topic areas would create a safe, easy-to-use environment for 
people to participate, at their convenience, from their computer or mobile phone. Online controls 
and screening processes are built into the site to ensure a safe user experience, and to filter 
inappropriate content so it is not on display to the public. Unlike a traditional “survey,” the 
virtual town hall allows for continuous participation and interaction throughout the entirety of 
the plan development process. 



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 5 of 11 

The site would also be used as an avenue to solicit general comments, ideas, and suggestions, 
which would supplement that gained through small group and face-to-face interviews that are 
conducted by the consultant team. MindMixer would be also be used to test ideas as to the City’s 
policies and the support for different implementation approaches. For instance, this could extract 
insight as to the community’s attitudes about quality development, growth management, 
regulatory controls, etc. 

This feedback will influence the overall direction of the draft Comprehensive Plan and, in 
particular, its recommended programs and initiatives, as well as implementation priorities to be 
highlighted in the plan through final review and deliberation by City Council. 

 

PHASE 2 – PLAN DEVELOPMENT 

TASK 5 – Vision, Principles and Preferences 

Upon transitioning from the initial community engagement activities into the plan development 
phase, KKC will prepare a list of draft Guiding Principles for consideration by the 
Comprehensive Plan Advisory Committee (CPAC) during its first meeting. These principles will 
set the stage for more detailed analyses when drafting each plan element. Each element will 
include a set of goals and strategies followed by detailed action recommendations. The action 
items are designed to help the community achieve its expressed goals in accordance with the 
broader guiding principles.  

Deliverables 

� CPAC Meeting 1 Guiding Principles. 

� Chapter 1, Introduction, with pertinent introductory and background information about the 
planning process and resulting new document, and incorporating the Community Overview 
component and demographic projections drafted through Task 2, Community Background, the 
results of the Task 3, Issues and Needs Workshop and small-group Listening Sessions. 

TASK 6 – Land Use and Character 

Through this plan element, KKC will document the City’s intent and policy regarding how 
growth and new development will be accommodated, consistent with other fiscal and 
community considerations – including efficient utilization of land, utility infrastructure, and 
roadway networks – to achieve and maintain a desired community form and character. This will 
include review and analysis of existing plans and studies regarding utilities infrastructure, 
including capacities and planning-level improvement needs to support and sustain desired 
growth and redevelopment. The consultant team will also assess the capacity of the City’s public 
safety services to accommodate ongoing growth and enlarged service areas. 

Task Activities 

1. Prepare a summary narrative describing existing utility infrastructure (water, wastewater, 
storm drainage), any facility or service issues or deficiencies, and the future outlook, 
anticipated needs, and programmed improvements. This will be drawn from recent/ongoing 
plans and studies and discussions with City staff and any other service providers in the area. 



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 6 of 11 

Also highlight implications for the city’s growth and development patterns, and likely 
demand for utility extension into areas not currently served. 

2. Review demographic and socioeconomic data to project land use demands and implications 
for public facilities and infrastructure services.  

3. Assess opportunities for and constraints to future development, infill development and 
redevelopment based upon significant land uses, use and property ownership patterns, the 
transportation network, infrastructure and public service capacity and availability, and 
environmental factors. Identify and quantify the areas available, most suitable, and preferred 
for new growth and targeted reinvestment, taking into account the general fiscal implications 
of alternative growth patterns. 

4. Provide an overview of the quality, character and condition of Rosenberg’s housing stock 
and neighborhoods. 

5. Assess the City’s public safety services; review current/planned service provision and 
anticipated staffing and facility needs to accommodate future growth. 

6. Draft policies regarding the appropriate siting, design and functionality of future community 
facilities. Also highlight opportunities to locate and integrate such facilities in strategic 
investment areas (e.g., downtown, key corridors) or other prime locations that would 
complement economic development and/or other community objectives. 

7. Document existing and emerging land use conflicts, compatibility and transition needs, and 
issues of community design. Prepare recommendations to protect and preserve valued 
natural, historic and scenic resources; the desired character of vacant tracts, infill sites, and 
properties warranting redevelopment; development compatibility; and other applicable 
development objectives. 

8. Draft general aesthetic improvement / enhancement guidelines, and policies for 
implementation, particularly as it relates to community identity and a sense of place (e.g., 
enhanced signage and wayfinding, urban design standards, etc.) and how it would apply to 
special districts within the City, and corridors, such as the management, redevelopment and 
enhancement of Avenues H & I and State Highway 36. 

Deliverables 

� Chapter 2, Land Use and Character, will establish the necessary policy guidance for making 
decisions about the compatibility of individual developments within the context of the larger 
community. This chapter will summarize the previously mentioned task activities, including 
but not limited to, the condition of the City’s utilities infrastructure, the City’s public safety 
services quality, and the general character and condition of Rosenberg’s housing stock and 
neighborhoods. This chapter will also provide a set of strategies to ensure the City’s overall 
design and image distinguishes Rosenberg from nearby communities which may be 
competing for residents and businesses. General guidelines and implementation policies for 
enhanced signage, wayfinding, and urban design standards for the management, 
redevelopment and enhancement of Avenues H & I and State Highway 36 will be included 
within this chapter. 

� Growth and Development Plan, will serve as the City’s “growth map” for directing 
development, preserving valued areas and lands, and protecting the integrity of 



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 7 of 11 

neighborhoods, while also safeguarding and enhancing community character and aesthetics. 
The development of the Growth and Development Plan will be coordinated with the 
updating of the Thoroughfare Plan, developed in conjunction with Chapter 3, Transportation, 
as well as the City’s policies and plans for new development and infill, annexation, and 
infrastructure investments and upgrades. 

TASK 7 – Transportation 

The consultant team will focus on policies and strategies designed to ensure orderly development 
and improvement of the area transportation system, considering not only facilities for 
automobiles but other modes of transportation as well. This includes “complete streets” 
considerations for pedestrian and bicycle circulation and safety, existing and future public 
transportation needs, and freight movement in and through the community (including truck 
traffic and railroad corridors). This task will be closely coordinated with planning associated with 
Chapter 2, Land Use and Character and preparation of the Growth and Development Plan to 
evaluate the impacts of different transportation investment decisions on future development and 
community character. The City’s current Thoroughfare Plan will also be reviewed to ensure 
adequate preservation of rights-of-way concurrent with new development. 

Task Activities 

1. Review available data, studies and plans regarding the existing transportation system and 
specific facilities/services (including freight movement and public transit), and current and 
projected roadway and traffic conditions and improvement needs. 

2. Perform existing conditions analyses of the major street system to evaluate traffic safety, as 
well as the capacity, level of service (LOS), necessary rights-of-way and facility cross sections, 
continuity, and connectivity of the existing and planned thoroughfare system. Also evaluate 
planned transportation improvements for their potential impacts on the city’s growth and 
land use patterns.  

3. Evaluate the City’s current Thoroughfare Plan to identify any warranted adjustments or 
additions necessary to implement and ensure consistency with the Growth and Development 
Plan and other City growth policies. Update the Thoroughfare Plan map to identify the 
general alignments of rights-of-way for future thoroughfares throughout the City limits and 
planning area, planned locations of interchanges and major intersections, and cross sections 
for varying roadway classifications. This will include consideration of how multi-modal 
improvements are accommodated within rights-of-way, especially to support pedestrian and 
bicycle circulation and future transit services and utilization through a “complete streets” 
approach. 

4. Draft policies to ensure consideration of vehicular and bicycle/pedestrian circulation needs in 
conjunction with future growth and land use planning, especially where major trip 
generators are involved. This will include review of the existing Parks Master Plan and other 
relevant plans, and evaluation of existing bicycle/pedestrian networks and facilities to 
identify gaps and improvement needs. 

5. Determine the need for better management of property access along major roadways to 
protect traffic-carrying capacity and improve safety, as well as the need to “calm” traffic 
within neighborhoods and other pedestrian-oriented areas. 



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 8 of 11 

6. Assess the outlook for public transit services in the area. 

Deliverables 

� Chapter 3, Transportation, will summarize the previously mentioned task activities, 
including the evaluation of traffic safety, capacity, and level of service (LOS), continuity, and 
connectivity of the existing and planned thoroughfare system. Vehicular and 
bicycle/pedestrian circulation policies related to future growth and land use planning, access 
management and traffic calming, will accompany the narrative.  

� Updated Thoroughfare Plan map. 

TASK 8 – Implementation 

KKC will utilize the recommendations of the individual plan elements to consolidate an overall 
strategy for executing the updated Comprehensive Plan, particularly for the highest-priority 
initiatives that will be first on the community’s action agenda. This plan element will also outline 
crucial procedures for monitoring and revisiting the plan policies and action priorities every year, 
and for completing future plan updates at appropriate milestones. These processes provide an 
essential “feedback loop” into the City’s long-range planning and strategic decision-making, 
leading to necessary plan adjustments based on implementation successes and challenges and 
ongoing changes in physical, economic and social conditions in the community and region.  

Task Activities 

1. Coordinate with City staff to compile from the various plan elements those action statements 
that are considered “strategic” in nature so they may be linked to specific implementation 
tools, strategies and potential funding mechanisms and thereby ensure that the new 
Comprehensive Plan is a “plan of action.” 

2. Assess the City’s “implementation readiness” and outline a recommended organizational 
framework to ensure successful implementation of the plan. This will include strategies for 
staffing, roles of boards and commissions, and linkages between the plan and the City’s 
annual budgeting and capital improvements programming. 

3. Embed an annual review and reporting function into the implementation program to provide 
a means of gauging progress and ensuring accountability. 

4. Highlight opportunities for the City to coordinate planning and implementation efforts with 
other key agencies and entities, with other jurisdictions, where appropriate, and with other 
private and non-profit partners. 

5. Facilitate a joint workshop of the City Council, Planning Commission, and Advisory 
Committee to provide an overview of the overall draft plan and identify near-term action 
priorities. Also lead discussion on available, feasible tools for accomplishing priority actions, 
particularly for steps to be taken immediately within the first six months following plan 
adoption; anticipated timeframes and assigned responsibility for each priority action item; 
and, strategies for maintaining community support and awareness – and momentum and 
energy for plan implementation – beyond plan adoption.  

 

 



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 9 of 11 

Deliverables 

� Chapter 4, Implementation, will summarize previously mentioned task activities with 
appropriate tables and illustrations to accompany the narrative. This element will include an 
action agenda of near-term and longer-range implementation steps; an associated 
organization and management plan; and, a strategy and schedule for regular plan reviews, 
amendments, and periodic updates. 

� Revised draft versions of all other plan elements and maps, in PDF format, for printing and 
advance distribution by City staff to the joint workshop participants. 

 

PHASE 3 – PLAN FINALIZATION AND ADOPTION 

TASK 9 – Public and Official Consideration 

Following the joint workshop under Task 8, KKC will coordinate with City staff to compile a final 
proposed Comprehensive Plan for public hearing and official consideration. 

Task Activities 

1. In coordination with City staff, present highlights of the final proposed plan at a public 
hearing before the Planning Commission, and assist in responding to public comments and 
questions, as appropriate. Then proceed into a Commission workshop, immediately after the 
hearing, to work through revisions the Commission deems necessary before making a 
recommendation of plan adoption to City Council. 

Deliverables 

� All elements and maps for the final proposed Comprehensive Plan document (Chapters 1-
4), in PDF format, for printing, distribution and website posting by City staff prior to the 
public hearing phase. 

� Itemization of all major revisions within the final proposed Comprehensive Plan document 
agreed upon by the Planning Commission before recommending plan adoption to City 
Council. 

 
TASK 10 – Plan Finalization and Summary 

Following plan adoption by City Council, KKC will finalize the Comprehensive Plan document 
to reflect all further adjustments made through final City Council review and deliberation. 

Deliverables 

� Three hard copies, full-color original of the final adopted Comprehensive Plan document, 
including all maps, illustrations and related attachments (provided in a binder for ease of 
reference and updating by the City). 

� Electronic files on compact disc for all elements of the final plan document (in their native 
format in Microsoft Office Suite or Adobe InDesign, Adobe PDFs, and all map-related files in 
ESRI-compatible formats). 

 



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 10 of 11 

 

APPROACH TO DELIVERABLES 

KKC will provide draft deliverables through each task of the project. These deliverables will 
facilitate workshop meetings, periodic releases of information to the media and public, and the 
orderly completion of the project. All such interim deliverables will be provided to the City in 
Adobe PDF format for ease of file transfer and reproduction and distribution. The PDF versions 
are also suitable for posting on the City’s website. Maps, illustrations and other graphics will be 
produced in color (unless they are black-and-white line sketches) in a format suitable for display 
during meetings and at public events/hearings. 

Whenever the consultant team submits draft deliverables, it will be the responsibility of the City’s 
Project Director to coordinate, compile and forward in a consolidated manner all review 
comments on and requested/suggested revisions to such deliverables. As part of each review 
phase, guidance from the Project Director should be included, as needed, on whether and how 
the consultant team should address certain comments which may be for information only (e.g., 
comments from outside reviewers) versus those involving specific, staff-recommended revisions. 

The project budget assumes original drafting of each deliverable and one consolidated revision 
upon receipt of compiled comments from the City’s Project Director. Only minor revisions will be 
made following adoption of the plan to produce a final plan document. Substantive revisions 
may require additional services depending on their nature and the current budget status. 
 

OPTIONAL TASKS 

The following tasks were identified within KKC’s response to RFQ No. 2014-24: 

Optional Task No. 1: Community Workshop No. 2  
A second community workshop would be convened during the draft plan phase to obtain 
feedback on the plan’s overall direction and potential implementation priorities. Participants 
would see how their input and interaction since the early stages of the process has come together 
in an overall draft Comprehensive Plan document. Highlights would be presented, and then 
attendees would have an opportunity to suggest where implementation efforts and resources 
should be focused, plus ways to move forward toward achieving near-term priorities that should 
be reflected in the plan. 
 

ADDITIONAL OR CONTINUING SERVICES 

During or at the conclusion of the project, the City may deem it necessary to schedule more 
meetings, request further issues research, or otherwise engage consultant team personnel in 
additional work efforts not anticipated at project initiation and through the Scope of Services 
currently outlined. Any such additional services shall be specifically authorized by the City 
Council or City Manager, as appropriate, and documented through a written amendment to the 
Scope of Services and approval of a corresponding increase in the maximum not-to-exceed 
amount (and, if necessary, the time of performance) of the original professional services 
agreement. 
  



Exhibit “A” - Scope of Services with Supplemental Service Options Page 11 of 11 

PROJECT COST 

Below are the costs for each task outlined in the above Scope of Services, inclusive of all 
associated labor and expense costs plus professional fee. 

Phase 1: Project Startup and Reconnaissance 

Project Administration and Management Activities $  3,450 

TASK 1 – Existing Information Assessment $  2,090 

TASK 2 – Community Background $  5,690 

TASK 3 – Community Engagement $  9,185 

TASK 4 - MindMixer (site live for three months during early outreach phase) $  6,860 

Phase 2: Plan Development 

TASK 5 – Vision, Principles and Preferences $  4,400 

TASK 6 – Land Use and Character $24,462 

TASK 7 – Transportation $21,668 

TASK 8 – Implementation $  9,870 

Phase 3: Plan Finalization and Adoption  

TASK 9 – Public and Official Consideration $  1,405 

 TASK 10 – Plan Finalization and Summary $  2,780 

TOTAL $91,860 

 

 

Optional Tasks: 

1. Community Workshop No. 2 $  3,820   

Subtotal $  3,820 
 



Exhibit “B” - Support Services of City Page 1 of 3 

Exhibit “B” 
Support Services of City 

 

The City will provide administrative and technical support services to assist the Consultant in 
performing the Scope of Services described in Exhibit “A.” The support services to be provided 
by the City will include the following types of general services and specific tasks for the work 
program: 

� Identify a single individual as the City’s Project Director, who will serve as a primary point of 
contact and source of day-to-day work program direction for this collaborative planning 
effort involving both City and Consultant personnel, resources and capabilities. 

� Provide all available data, maps, aerial imagery, previous reports/plans/studies, and other 
information that is available to the City in digital or printed format and is pertinent and 
necessary for development of each deliverable. Prompt compilation and delivery of such resource 
materials to the Consultant is an essential prerequisite for initiation of work and timely progress on 
various initial study tasks. The City will reproduce all materials, to the extent feasible, such that 
they will not require return upon project completion. 

� Assist the Consultant in establishing contacts with agencies and organizations for data 
collection and coordination purposes, except where the Consultant is already known to and 
has communicated with an agency or organization through previous projects. Based on our 
experience, it is helpful for City staff to make such entities aware of the project and provide a 
“heads up” in advance of potential Consultant contacts so the agency or organization 
recognizes that the Consultant is engaged in a City-sponsored project that will benefit from 
their input and support. 

� Ensure that key City personnel, board/commission members, and elected officials will 
participate as needed in the planning process and be available upon request, through 
arrangements made by the City’s Project Director, to provide information and referrals and 
offer opinions, insights, and suggestions that are necessary for the project. This will include 
potential formal or informal meetings and briefings with the City Council and other City 
officials as specified in Exhibit “A,” Scope of Services. 

� Immediately upon project initiation the City’s Project Director will coordinate with the 
Consultant to transfer spatial data and mapping that the City can make available for the 
project, including data sets and GIS coverages (and AutoCAD layers, as useful and 
appropriate) already developed/maintained by the City for its entire planning area or readily 
available to the City from other sources. Delay in transferring this data to the Consultant may 
compromise the overall work program and the schedule of deliverables. Availability of a workable base 
map and dataset is an essential prerequisite for initiation of work and timely progress on various 
initial tasks. 

� Reproduce and forward each draft project deliverable submitted by the Consultant 
(via email) to advisory committee members, key City staff members, and other project 
participants as appropriate. In addition, each draft deliverable should also be provided to the 
Planning Commission (if an advisory committee is established) and City Council for courtesy 
review and discussion as the planning process proceeds. An item should be added to the 



Exhibit “B” - Support Services of City Page 2 of 3 

Planning Commission and City Council agendas throughout the duration of the project to 
provide ongoing discussion opportunities for these bodies and to allow for overall direction 
of the process. City staff will be responsible for providing briefings to the City Council at 
regular intervals throughout the process, in addition to any Consultant briefings specified in 
Exhibit “A,” Scope of Services. 

� Conduct public information activities in conjunction with major public meetings/events and 
other fitting project milestones. The City will be responsible for news media contacts, 
preparation and distribution of news releases and any other public information materials, 
and posting of meeting notices and project information and updates on the City’s website. 

� Use the City’s website to disseminate information and inform, update, and educate the public 
about the project, including opportunities for ongoing input and interaction through the 
MindMixer Online Discussion Forum. The Consultant will provide already-completed 
documents or GIS maps in an Adobe PDF format, which can be easily posted by City staff on 
the City’s website. 

� Provide three-ring binders (2-inch size) with section dividers (based on the number of project 
elements plus some extra tabs for other project materials) for all advisory committee 
members, involved City officials and staff, and others as needed for purposes of organizing 
and maintaining project materials throughout the process. The Consultant will be responsible 
for presentations and preparation of necessary graphic aids for all meetings. The Consultant 
will provide electronic files of notebook materials for reproduction and distribution by the 
City. 

� Arrange and provide use of public meeting facilities for each scheduled public involvement 
event and meeting identified in Exhibit “A,” Scope of Services, including adequate setup for 
presentations (PowerPoint projector, sound system, screen or white wall, reduced lighting, 
extension cords and multi-plug power strips, etc.). The City’s support services will include 
providing public and news media notification of public meetings, preparing sign-in sheets, 
producing/mailing/distributing notices, reproducing agendas and other handout materials, 
and providing refreshments. The Consultant will be responsible for presentations and 
preparation of necessary graphic aids for all meetings, including easels, flip pads and 
markers. The City will also be responsible for inviting members of City boards and 
commissions and representatives of other key agencies and community organizations to 
attend public meetings related to the planning process. 

� Commit the necessary resources to prepare adequately for, promote citizen participation in, 
and ensure media coverage of key community involvement events. The City might consider 
inviting other community organizations to co-sponsor or “co-host” such key events and 
provide further logistical support. The City’s responsibilities will include securing a meeting 
location with adequate setup and seating for large gatherings and presentations (PowerPoint 
projector, sound system, screen or white wall, reduced lighting, extension cords and multi-
plug power strips, etc.), distributing promotional posters and/or flyers, distributing any other 
public information materials, publicizing the event through informal networks and “word of 
mouth” means, encouraging major businesses and institutions to highlight the event on high-
profile marquee signs and message boards (as appropriate), making arrangements for 
snacks/beverages and “warm-up” entertainment (as appropriate, such as a local school choir 
or string quartet), providing greeters and City staff or volunteers to staff a sign-in table, 



Exhibit “B” - Support Services of City Page 3 of 3 

assigning City staff to assist Consultant personnel during any planned small-group break-out 
sessions, arranging for City officials to welcome attendees and provide brief opening 
remarks, inviting any guest speakers as needed, arranging one or more door prizes to 
encourage attendees to stay for the entire event (as appropriate), and reproducing a 
program/agenda for the event. The Consultant will provide a checklist and other guidance 
and sample materials based on its experience in conducting and facilitating many similar 
events in other communities. 

� Commit the necessary staff and financial resources to prepare adequately for, promote citizen 
and leadership participation in, and ensure media coverage of the MindMixer Virtual Town 
Hall site. The City’s responsibilities will include reviewing and approving website content 
prior to publication at consistent intervals throughout the planning process (as outlined in 
Exhibit “A,” Scope of Services, Task 4); compiling and providing digital photos of key 
elected/appointed officials and City staff; monitoring website comments regularly in 
partnership with Consultant staff; distributing promotional posters and/or business cards; 
publicizing the website through both formal and informal networks as well as “word of 
mouth” means; encouraging civic organizations and major businesses and institutions to 
highlight the site through their marketing channels; and arranging for one or more prizes to 
encourage optimal participation from users. The Consultant will provide a checklist and 
other guidance and sample materials based on its experience in overseeing similar interactive 
websites for other communities. 

� Consider and act on all deliverables and other interim work items submitted by the 
Consultant that require City review, comments, or approval within the scheduled timeframes 
to enable the Consultant to complete the work on schedule. Specific timeframes for such City 
response will be incorporated into the detailed project schedule cited in Exhibit “A,” Scope of 
Services. Upon receipt of a consolidated list of written comments, the Consultant will provide 
one round of edits. Any additional edits will be on an Additional Services basis. Any delays 
encountered by the Consultant during the project, which are beyond the Consultant’s control, will be 
documented in the monthly progress reports and may delay the delivery of work products and/or the 
original anticipated completion date of the project. 

� Provide the Consultant written summaries, and copies of any handouts/materials, from all 
project-related meetings not attended by the Consultant.  

� Provide such public notice of meetings and hearings as is required by law or deemed 
desirable by the City. 



PAGE 1 OF 2 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 24, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

2.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS SCOPE OF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE PROJECT, AND 
TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: As discussed at the May 6, 2014 City Council meeting, on February 11, 
2014, the Professional Services/Engineering Project Review Committee recommended that 
Kendig Keast Collaborative be selected to update the City’s Comprehensive Plan (Plan). The 
Plan update is a budgeted project.  The Plan was last updated in 1995.  Since that time, the 
City’s population has grown by over 50 percent (50%) from 23,000 to approximately 35,000.  
The rate of growth has increased recently and is expected to continue given the widening of U.S. 
59/I-69 and build-out of neighboring communities immediately north of Rosenberg.  Therefore, it 
is critical for the City to plan and determine what infrastructure improvements and development 
standards are needed to accommodate future growth and development. 
 
The scope of the Plan update will generally include the following per Exhibit “A”, Scope of 
Services: 

• Community Overview (e.g., data collection, analysis of existing ordinances and planning 
documents, demographic analysis, population projections) 

• Community engagement (community workshop, facilitation of Advisory Committee 
meetings, use of MindMixer virtual town hall website, public hearings, engagement of 
Planning Commission and City Council, establishment of “guiding principles,” etc.) 

• Land Use and Character (infrastructure analysis, land use projections, growth and 
development plan/map) 

• Transportation (existing thoroughfare plan analysis, consideration for bicycle and 
pedestrian mobility, access management analysis, updated Master Thoroughfare Plan 
map) 

• Plan Implementation (action plan to implement the above comprehensive plan elements)
 
The consultant, Kendig Keast Collaborative, has extensive experience working with 
communities without zoning, similar to Rosenberg, to implement their plans.  The above scope 
of work will be completed for an amount not to exceed $91,860, which is well within the 
budgeted amount of $100,000.  The Professional Services Agreement with Kendig Keast 
Collaborative is attached to Resolution No. R-1787 as Exhibit “A”.  At the May 6, 2014 meeting, 
this item was tabled for further discussion at a Workshop.  The item has been placed on the 
Agenda for City Council to discuss the scope of the Project going forward.  Staff will present 
additional information and the consultant will again be available to answer questions. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development gave an overview of the 
item regarding the Comprehensive Plan Update Project. 
 

Questions: 
• Q. Will the existing studies, such as the Transit and Pedestrian Study, West Fort Bend 

Management District’s Access Management Study and others be used in this plan? 
• A: Yes.  
• Q: How will the selection process occur for the mixture of the committees? 
• A: Staff wants to make sure that we reach more than just the Advisory Committee. We 

will look at the business community and residents. 
• Q: In order to keep the integrity of the data, will there be a filter in place that will assure 

us that one person does not submit multiple entries? 
• A: Yes. 
• Q: Will there be a distinction in the filter to determine Rosenberg residents versus 

others? 
• A: Yes. 
• Q: Regarding City Support Services will the prizes be at the City’s expense? 
• A: Brian Keast, Kendig Keast Collaborative explained that is a means of eliciting 

additional support to provide small prizes at the City’s expense which would be a 

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 1 OF 2 * SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 24, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

nominal expense. 
• Q: What kind of prize would the public be encouraged to participate for? 
• A: Gift certificates to local restaurants or businesses to insure the money remains in the 

community. 
• Q: How were the costs arrived at? 
• A: The consultant was asked and we are familiar with the project Richmond is 

undertaking. 
• Q: Would this plan be binding to developers? How would it be enforced? 
• A: Yes. They have to comply with the Comprehensive Plan when they go through the 

platting process. There are ordinances with setbacks, height requirements, landscaping, 
building exteriors that are not zoning but are binding to developers. 

• Q: Would this plan be binding to future councils? 
• A: It is a helpful document for continuity purposes for future councils but is does not 

bind a future council in a legal way. 
• Q: What is the timeframe for completion of the plan? 
• A: Nine months but it could be extended if Council wanted increased or additional 

participation, or it could be accelerated. 
• Q: When the public is engaged is it open to anyone? 
• A: Yes. 
• Mayor Morales stated the general consensus of Council was to move forward with the 

Comprehensive Plan Update Project. 
• No action was taken on the item. 

 
 

reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



Page 2 of 2 * PROFESSIONAL SERVICES/ENGINEERING PROJECT REVIEW COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 11, 2014 -- DRAFT 

 
 

 
3. HEAR PRESENTATION FROM GRANTWORKS, INC., REGARDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 

Key discussion points: 
• Ms. Denman Glober Netherland, AICP, from Grantworks, Inc., distributed handouts and gave a 

presentation regarding the firm’s qualifications, experience, and proposals. 
• During and after the presentation, Ms. Netherland from Grantworks, Inc. answered questions 

and provided additional information to the Committee and staff. 
 

Action:  No action taken. 
 

4. HEAR PRESENTATION FROM KENDIG KEAST COLLABORATIVE REGARDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 
Key discussion points: 

• Representatives from Kendig Keast Collaborative (Bret C. Keast, AICP; Aaron J. Tuley, AICP; 
and Jessica Duet) distributed handouts and gave a presentation regarding the firm’s 
qualifications, experience, and proposals. 

• During and after the presentation, Kendig Keast Collaborative answered questions and 
provided additional information to the Committee and staff. 

 
Action:  No action taken. 
 

5. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A RECOMMENDATION TO THE ROSENBERG CITY 
COUNCIL REGARDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 
Key discussion points: 

• The Committee discussed each firm’s presentation and proposal.  Major topics included were: 
which firm would work in the best interest for Rosenberg and the citizens.  The general 
consensus of the Committee was that all presenters did an outstanding job.  The Committee 
leaned toward recommending Kendig Keast Collaborative because of their approach and 
because they had previously prepared the Parks Master Plan in 2002 and 2007.  Kendig Keast 
Collaborative is familiar with Rosenberg, and the Committee discussed that their outlined 
overview would be a great benefit for Rosenberg strategically, due in part to their past 
knowledge in working on the Parks Master Plan. 

 
Action:  Councilor Pena made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton to recommend to the City 
Council the firm of Kendig Keast Collaborative regarding the comprehensive plan.  The motion carried 
by a unanimous vote. 
 

3. ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, the Professional Services Committee Meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 

 
 

    ---DRAFT--- 
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary 

 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

July 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Presentation Regarding a Proposed Eagle Scout Project for Seabourne 
Creek Regional Sports Complex Sign Landscaping 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Hear and discuss a presentation regarding a proposed Eagle Scout Project to install drought-resistant 
plantings for a sign beautification project in Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex, and take action 
as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[  ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Presentation – Seabourne Creek Sports Complex Sign Beautification  
2. Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 06-26-14 

 
APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

Darren McCarthy  
Parks and Recreation 
Director 

Reviewed by:  
  
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] Communications Director 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On June 26, 2014, John Dikeman of Troop 731 presented a proposed Eagle Scout Project (Project) to be 
placed in Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex to the Parks and Recreation Board (Board).  After 
reviewing his presentation regarding a proposal to install drought-resistant plantings for a sign 
beautification project in Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex, the Board unanimously 
recommended the Project plan for approval as presented. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Eagle Scout Project at Seabourne Creek Regional Sports 
Complex based upon John Dikeman’s presentation and the recommendation of the Parks and Recreation 
Board. 
 
 



Seabourne Creek Sports Coomplex Sign Beautification





H 36

Fountains Drive 
(entrance to Sport 

Complex)

Hwy 36

Sign Location

Seabour
Creek

Nature P

Hwy 59 (Southwest Freeway)

Seabourne 
Sports 
Complex

rne 
k 
Park



Pink SkullcapPink Skullcap

D ht t l tlDrought tolerant
lLow to the ground
lLate spring- early falllLate spring early fall

Texas Native Lantana

lVery hardy
lGets to be about 2'
Late spring early falllLate spring-early fall



Texas SageTexas Sage

D ht t l tlDrought tolerant
lUp to 8 feet
lSummer/falllSummer/fall
lEvergreen

Beautyberry

lDrought resistant
lLate summer
l3-5' tall



YauponYaupon

D ht t l tlDrought tolerant
l10-20'
lFalllFall
lEvergreen

n Hollyn Holly





Final PFinal P

Texas Sage
Texas Native Lanta

ProductProduct

ana Pink Skullcap
Yaupon Holly



BudgBudg

Rough estim

getget

mate: 600$



DRAFT 

 
PAGE 1 of 5  PARKS & RECREATION BOARD MEETING DRAFT MINUTES  JUNE 26, 2014 

 

 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

*** DRAFT *** 
 
On this the 26th day of June 2014, the Parks and Recreation Board of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Regular Session at Rosenberg Civic Center located at 3825 Hwy. 36 South, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Teresa Bailey 
Stanley Kucherka 
Bertha Nell Kelm 
Melissa Dixon 
Rudy Guerrero 
Ray Kueck 
George Zepeda 
Amanda Bolf 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Vice Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Secretary  
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
Council Liaison 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT  
Laurie Cook 
Eric Ramirez 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
 

STAFF PRESENT  
Darren McCarthy 
Lydia Acosta 
 

Parks and Recreation Director  
Recreation Programs Coordinator 

GUESTS PRESENT  
John Dikeman 
Rick Adams 
Barry Henry 
Laurie Kucera 

Eagle Scout Candidate, Troop 731 
C.P.C. of Texas Master Naturalists 
Friends of North Rosenberg 
Dept. of Family & Protective Services 

 
AGENDA 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Teresa Bailey, Parks and Recreation Board Vice Chairman, declared a quorum and called the meeting to order 
at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON MINUTES OF  MAY 22, 2014 PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD 
MEETING MEETINGS.    
 
Key Discussion:  Lydia Acosta, Recreation Programs Coordinator, asked the Board to review the minutes of 
the May meeting as presented and take action as necessary.  
 
ACTION:  Stanley Kucherka made a motion, seconded by Bertha Nell Kelm, that the minutes be accepted as 
presented. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of those present.   
 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PROPOSED EAGLE SCOUT PROJECT BY JOHN DIKEMAN, 
TROOP 731, IN SEABOURNE CREEK PARK.   
 
Key Discussion:  Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, introduced Eagle Scout candidate John 
Dikeman, of Troop 731, to the Board. John asked the Board’s permission to landscape the entrance sign into 
Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex as his community project. He explained that he use plants such as 

reneel
Rectangle



DRAFT 

 
PAGE 2 of 5  PARKS & RECREATION BOARD MEETING DRAFT MINUTES  JUNE 26, 2014 

 

Pink Skullcaps, Texas Native Lantana, Texas Sage, Beauty Berry and Youpon Holly because of their tolerance 
for drought conditions. John showed the Members a graphic of the layout design he plans to use, showcasing 
the shorter plants in front of the sign and larger ones on the side and in the back, so as not to obscure visibility 
of the sign itself. He also added that if his budget of $600 allowed, he would add a rock border around the plants 
and signs. Darren confirmed that John would be working under the supervision of Rick Adams and the Texas 
Master Naturalists.   
 
ACTION:  Rudy Guerrero made a motion, seconded by Stanley Kucherka, to approve the proposed Eagle Scout 
project in Seabourne Creek Park as presented. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of those present.   
 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON FRIENDS OF NORTH ROSENBERG/ATTACK POVERTY EVENTS 
IN COMMUNITY PARK IN JULY.     
 
Key Discussion:  Lydia Acosta, Recreation Programs Coordinator, introduced Barry Henry of Friends of North 
Rosenberg to the Board. Barry thanked the Members for their time and told them that his organization, an 
offshoot of Attack Poverty would like to do some outreach to the neighborhood surrounding Community Park. 
He explained that Friends of North Rosenberg was established to help alleviate generational poverty by 
assisting communities in the cleanup of homes, streets and common areas. With the help of local churches, 
they bring approximately 60 volunteers into the neighborhood to lend a hand in whatever capacity the 
community requires, including after school programs, bible studies and other fun activities for children. Friends 
of North Rosenberg would like to donate two soccer goals to the Parks Department to be placed in vacant land 
adjacent to the pavilion at Community Park for the neighborhood children to use. In addition, they would like to 
schedule an outreach on the 3rd Saturday of each month to be in the park and interact with the community. 
Teresa Bailey commented that the soccer goals and future programs were much appreciated for the children of 
that neighborhood.   
 
ACTION:  Stanley Kucherka made a motion, seconded by George Zepeda, to approve the proposed Friends of 
North Rosenberg events in Community Park in the month of July and August. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of those present.   
 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON BACK TO SCHOOL SUMMER EVENT IN SEABOURNE CREEK 
NATURE PARK ON SATURDAY, AUGUST 2, 2014.   
 
Key Discussion:  Lydia Acosta, Recreation Programs Coordinator, introduced Laurie Kucera of the Department 
of Family and Protective Services to the Board. Laurie explained that her department would like to hold a Back-
to-School Summer event in Seabourne Creek Nature Park on Saturday, August 2nd. The event would not be 
open to the public, but rather a private outing for approximately 150 children in foster care, along with 
caseworkers and CASA volunteers to chaperone. The purpose of the event would be to provide fun activities, 
games and food for the children prior to the start of the next school year. Laurie added that this would be the 
inaugural year for the event, but that the department hoped to make it an annual occurrence. Councilor Bolf 
asked what the ages of the children would be and Laurie responded that they would be five years old and up. 
George Zepeda asked if they were a 501(c)3 entity and Laurie responded that they are a state agency. George 
added that he could help them acquire a generator at no cost to run the inflatables and food machines used for 
the event (popcorn, snow cone, etc.). Barry Henry added that he could also help secure a generator for the 
event.  
 
ACTION:  George Zepeda made a motion, seconded by Bertha Nell Kelm, to approve the proposed Back-to-
School Summer event in Seabourne Creek Nature Park on Saturday, August 2, 2014. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of those present.   
 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION RECOMMENDED 
FY15 NEIGHBORHOOD PARK PROJECT FUNDING.      
 
Key Discussion:  Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, told the Board that in a recent RDC 
meeting, the committee voted to present the Parks Department with a budget of $150,000 for FY 2014-2015 in 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Resolution No. R-1815 - Authorization to Submit Apache Foundation Tree 
Grant Application 

 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1815, a Resolution authorizing the Parks and Recreation 
Department to submit an application to the Apache Foundation Tree Grant Program.   

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[   ]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [X] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Resolution No. R-1815 
2. Apache Foundation Tree Grant Program Application 
3. Location Map – Proposed Grant Award Tree Planting Locations 
4. Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 06-26-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Darren McCarthy 
Parks and Recreation Director  

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer  
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services   

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Apache Corporation Tree Grant Program (Grant Program) focuses on improving wildlife habitats, 
restoring storm damage, and enhancing cities and neighborhoods.  The Grant Program for 2014-2015 
hopes to donate thousands of trees to applicants in Texas. 
 
According to the Grant Program, one (1) acre of forest can provide up to four (4) tons of oxygen and remove up 
to six (6) tons of carbon dioxide per year.  Trees bring nature into urban environments, create shade, and provide 
habitat for wildlife. 
 
If awarded, staff is recommending the trees be placed in Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex and 
Seabourne Creek Nature Park in December 2014.   
 
Staff recommends applying for the following trees through the Grant Program: 

• Fifty (50) Native Pecan 
• Fifty (50) Live Oak 

 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1815, authorizing the submittal of an application to the Apache 
Foundation Tree Grant Program for one-hundred (100) trees for placement in Seabourne Creek Regional Sports 
Complex and Seabourne Creek Nature Park. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1815 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION DEPARTMENT TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR 
THE APACHE FOUNDATION TREE GRANT PROGRAM. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
  
 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg, Texas (City), is fully eligible to receive 

assistance under the Apache Foundation Tree Grant Program; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes submission of a grant 

application to the Apache Foundation Tree Grant Program for one-hundred (100) trees 

to be planted at Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex and Seabourne Creek 

Nature Park. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle





reneel
Text Box
Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex

reneel
Text Box
Seabourne Creek Nature Park

reneel
Text Box
Proposed Grant Award Tree Planting LocationsSeabourne Creek Park



DRAFT 

 
PAGE 3 of 5  PARKS & RECREATION BOARD MEETING DRAFT MINUTES  JUNE 26, 2014 

 

order to demolish and replace the restrooms at Macario Garcia Park. The funding would replace the annual 
$50,000 budget that the RDC usually allots for improvements to parks throughout the City for the coming year. 
However, Darren noted that the restrooms in Macario Garcia Park were an eyesore and in desperate need of 
replacement. Darren added that he would need approval from the Parks Board to take the item to City Council.   
 
ACTION:  Ray Kueck made a motion, seconded by Bertha Nell Kelm, to approve the proposed Rosenberg 
Development Corporation FY15 Neighborhood Park Project funding. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of 
those present.   
 
 
HEAR AND DISCUSS PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF MAY 2014. 
 
Key Discussion:  Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, gave the following updates on the parks:  
 

• Brazos Park – Repaired basketball nets. Planted rose bushes donated by Lowe’s and spread mulch in 
the flowerbed. Planted RDC funded large, live oak trees. Continued work on disc golf course.   

• Community Park – Repaired basketball nets. Prepared the flowerbed for roses donated by Lowe’s.  
Planted rose bushes in the flowerbed.  

• Harwood Park – Nothing new to report. 

• Macario Garcia Park – Repaired basketball nets. Sprayed herbicide on trails. Ended Spring Men’s and 
Co-ed softball on Mondays and Tuesdays. Summer season will begin mid-May.    

• Riverbend Park – Nothing new to report. 

• Seabourne Creek Nature Park – Planted and watered trees. Worked to repair areas on the boardwalk 
that needed replacement boards. Hosted the City Easter Egg Hunt with 300+ children plus family 
members attending. Installed Eagle Scout project blue bird boxes.    

• Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex – Planted large RDC funded trees. Hosted Pitch, Hit & Run 
Skills Competition with the Rosenberg Lion’s Club.  

• Sunset Park – Sprayed trails with herbicide. Fixed a broken bench. Repaired basketball nets. Painted 
over graffiti.  

• Travis Park – Planted large RDC funded live oak trees. Laid out new trails. Began berming/hills along 
new trails. Sprayed trails with herbicide. Spread out gravel on the new trails. Ended Spring Men’s and 
Co-ed softball on Monday and Tuesdays. Summer season will begin mid-May.     

• Special Events: Presented new Christmas in Rosenberg format to City Council. Prepared for May 1st 
event to unveil new Christmas in Rosenberg format to downtown businesses. Continue work on 
securing Family 4th vendors.  

 
ACTION:  Teresa Bailey, Parks and Recreation Board Chairman, asked to continue on if there were no other 
questions or comments. 
 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON APACHE FOUNDATION TREE GRANT PROGRAM.        
 
Key Discussion:  Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, informed the Board that applications have 
been sent out for the annual Apache Corporation Tree Grant Program. As in years past, he would apply for one 
hundred (100) trees, assuming the typical fifty (50) would be awarded. Of those fifty, twenty-five (25) should be 
live oaks and twenty-five (25) should be pecan trees. The new trees would be planted in SCRSC and used to fill 
in spaces where other Apache trees have died. Darren asked the Board for their approval to proceed so that he 
could take the item to Council for approval in July.  
 
ACTION:  Rudy Guerrero made a motion, seconded by Stanley Kucherka, directing staff to proceed with the 
application for the Apache Foundation Tree Grant Program and take the matter to City Council. The motion 
passed by a unanimous vote of those present.   

reneel
Rectangle



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 4 
 

Consider motion to adjourn for Executive 
Session.  

 



 
 
 
 

ITEM 5 
 

Hold Executive Session to deliberate 
potential purchase, exchange, lease, or value 
of real property pursuant to Section 551.072 
of the Texas Government Code; and, to 
deliberate the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of Municipal Court Judge 
pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 6 
 

Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into 
Regular Session, and take action as 
necessary as a result of Executive Session. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

July 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 Resolution No. R-1817 - Appointment of Municipal Court Judge for Two 
(2) Year Term  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1817, a Resolution providing for the appointment of the 
Presiding Judge of the Municipal Court of the City, for a two (2) year term beginning October 01, 2014, 
and ending September 30, 2016. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time                             
[X]  Recurring                               
[   ]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1817 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:  

 
James A. Baker 
Presiding Judge, Municipal 
Court 

Reviewed by:   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)   

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 

 
Robert Gracia  
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City’s current appointment of the Presiding Judge of the Municipal Court of the City of Rosenberg will 
expire September 30, 2014. Making the appointment of the Judge in July, but effective October 01, 2014, 
allows for the associated Compensation Agreement, to be considered under the following Agenda item, to 
be completed during the Budget preparation for FY2014-15, thereby simplifying the FY2014-15 Budget 
process. 
 
James A. Baker, the present Presiding Judge, requests appointment as the Presiding Judge of the 
Municipal Court of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, for a two (2) year term commencing October 01, 2014, 
and ending September 30, 2016; and, therefore approval of Resolution No. R-1817. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1817 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF THE 
PRESIDING JUDGE OF THE MUNICIPAL COURT OF THE CITY, FOR 
A TWO (2) YEAR TERM BEGINNING OCTOBER 01, 2014, AND 
ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2016. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
WHEREAS, the Presiding Judge (“position”) for the City of Rosenberg is 

appointed to perform certain duties on behalf of the City of Rosenberg, Texas; and, 
 
WHEREAS, said duties include, but are not limited to presiding over cases within 

the jurisdiction of the municipal court; conferring with the City Council on judicial 
matters; attending required seminars given by the State of Texas or other acceptable 
entities for municipal court judges; preparation and issuance of search warrants and 
related legal documents; conducting trials and arraignments; magistration of prisoners; 
conducting Texas Department of Transportation license revocation hearings; conducting 
Rosenberg Housing Authority appeal hearings; generally determining and adjudicating 
cases coming before the court; and, performing such other duties as may be required 
by law or ordinance of said position; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City Council sees fit to appoint James A. Baker to said position for a 

specified term; now, therefore, 
  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. City Council appoints James A. Baker to serve in the position of 

Presiding Judge for a two (2) year term beginning October 01, 2014, and ending 

September 30, 2016.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
July 15, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Resolution No. R-1818 – Annual Evaluation and Compensation for the 
Position of Municipal Court Judge   

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1818, a Resolution providing for an annual evaluation 
and authorized compensation for the position of Presiding Judge of the Rosenberg Municipal Court. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X]  Recurring 
[   ]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds: 

101-1417-510-1010 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #: N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1818 
 
APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   
 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr./rl 
 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. 
Mayor  

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney      
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

City Council has established an evaluation date of on or before October 1st of each year for certain “direct 
report” administrative positions.  This item provides an opportunity for City Council to take action out of 
Executive Session with regard to said evaluation and establish compensation for the position of Presiding 
Judge of the Rosenberg Municipal Court. 
 
City Council having contemporaneously appointed James A. Baker, Presiding Judge for the two (2) year term 
beginning October 01, 2014, and ending September 30, 2016, it is incumbent upon City Council to establish the 
compensation to be paid for that position for that term and to authorize the execution of a Compensation 
Agreement between the City and James A. Baker stating the compensation to be paid as so established; and, to 
provide for other benefits of a full time employee of the City for the two (2) year term beginning October 01, 2014, 
and ending September 30, 2016.   
 
Therefore, approval of Resolution No. R-1818 is recommended with the associated Compensation Agreement 
attached as Exhibit “A” once compensation has been established.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1818 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR AN ANNUAL EVALUATION 
AND AUTHORIZED COMPENSATION FOR THE POSITION OF 
PRESIDING JUDGE OF THE ROSENBERG MUNICIPAL COURT. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council that an annual evaluation 
(evaluation) be performed, on or before October 1st, by City Council for the position of 
Presiding Judge of the Rosenberg Municipal Court; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City Council has defined goals and performance objectives for the 

position of Presiding Judge essential for the implementation of the City Council’s policy 
objectives, and for the effective operation of the City of Rosenberg; and,  

 
WHEREAS, City Council sees fit to establish compensation for the position of 

Presiding Judge for a two (2) year term beginning October 01, 2014, and ending 
September 30, 2016, said position being that of Presiding Judge in the Rosenberg 
Municipal Court; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City Council desires to establish an annual base salary in the 

amount of $__________________ for James A. Baker as just compensation for serving 
in the position of Presiding Judge; now, therefore, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Compensation 

Agreement (Agreement) by and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and James A. 

Baker, Presiding Judge of the Municipal Court for said City. 

 Section 2.   The Agreement establishes compensation for the position of 

Presiding Judge, namely James A. Baker, for a two (2) year term beginning October 01, 

2014, and ending September 30, 2016, and is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 



1 of 2. 
 

COMPENSATION AGREEMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND 

  The  parties  hereto,  the  City  of  Rosenberg,  a  home‐rule municipality  situated  in  Fort 
Bend County, Texas, hereinafter  referred  to as “Rosenberg” and  James A. Baker are entering 
into  this  Compensation  Agreement  for  the  position  of  Presiding  Judge  of  the  Rosenberg 
Municipal Court and in that regard the parties mutually agree as follows: 

1.  Acknowledgment of Appointment and Representations:   

James A. Baker, the present duly appointed Presiding Judge of the Municipal Court of the City 
of Rosenberg,  for  the  term beginning October 1, 2012, and ending September 30, 2014, who 
has been reappointed by separate contemporaneous council action as Presiding Judge for the 
term  beginning October  1,  2014,  and  ending  September  30,  2016,  represents  to  the City  of 
Rosenberg that he has the legal competency, qualification and experience to provide services as 
Presiding  Judge of  the Municipal Court of  the City of Rosenberg and will maintain at his own 
expense  a  valid  and  current  license  to  practice  law  in  the  State  of  Texas.    It  is  specifically 
understood  and  agreed  by  the  parties  that  this  appointment  shall  be  governed  by  the 
Rosenberg City Charter and Ordinances pertaining thereto.  

2.  Compensation for Judicial Services: 

Rosenberg does hereby establish the compensation for James A. Baker as Presiding Judge of the 
Municipal Court of the City of Rosenberg and for the  judicial services to be performed  in that 
capacity as follows: 

For the biannual term commencing on the 1st day of October 2014, and 
ending on the 30th day of September 2016, the compensation shall be as 
follows: 

For  the  period  October  1,  2014,  through  September  30,  2016, 
$_____________ per year at the rate of $___________ per biweekly pay 
period. 

3.  Judicial Services to be Performed:  

The services to be provided as Municipal Judge  include, but are not  limited to, presiding over 
cases within the  jurisdiction of the Court, conferring with the City Council on  judicial matters; 
attending  required  seminars  given  by  the  State  of  Texas  or  other  acceptable  entities  for 
municipal  court  judges;  preparation  and  issuance  of  search  warrants  and  related  legal 
documents;  conducting  trials  and  arrangements; magistration of prisoners;  conducting Texas 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1818



2 of 2. 
 

Department  of  Transportation  license  revocation  hearings  when  scheduled;  and  generally 
determining the adjudicating cases coming before the court and performing such other duties 
as may be  required by  law or ordinance of  that position, except  the  Judge shall not perform 
marriages.  

4.  Transportation Allowance: 

Rosenberg agrees  to pay  James A. Baker  the  sum of $200.00 per month as a  transportation 
allowance  for  the  transportation  to  attend  to  the  services  to be performed pursuant  to  this 
agreement; such monthly payments to begin during the month of October 2014 and end during 
the month of September 2016.  

5.  Status of Full Time Employee and Benefits:   

James A. Baker shall be classified as a full time employee of the City of Rosenberg and shall be 
entitled to all benefits of a full time employee at the annual compensation set out in paragraph 
2 above.    James A. Baker shall be enrolled  in the TMRS  (Texas Municipal Retirement System) 
pension plan in the same manner and shall receive contribution from Rosenberg, to TMRS in a 
manner as provided for all other Rosenberg employees based upon the annual compensation 
set out in paragraph 2 above.  

6.  Compensation Agreement and Appointment Immediately Binding:  

The parties hereto  acknowledge  that  this  agreement was approved  and executed  and  agree 
that  this  Compensation  Agreement  and  Appointment  shall  be  binding  as  of  the  date  of 
Execution  and  Appointment  but  that  the  compensation  amounts  provided  for  herein  shall 
commence October  1,  2014,  and  end  September  30,  2016.    Further  the  parties  agree  that 
funding  for  this Compensation Agreement  shall be  included  in  the FY2014‐2015 and FY2015‐
2016 Budgets.   

In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed of this 
the _____ day of __________, 2014.  

_______________________________________  
James A. Baker 
 
Executed  for  and  behalf  of  the  city  of  Rosenberg,  Texas,  by  the  undersigned  officer  on  the 
_____ day of ________, 2014, pursuant to authorized action of the City Council of the City of 
Rosenberg.   

______________________________________ 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

______________________________________  
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary  



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 9 
 

Announcements. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 10 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 07-15-14
	-- General Comments from the Audience
	-- Comments from the Audience for Regular and Consent Agenda Items
	1 - Review of Consent Agenda
	A - Minutes
	Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - 06-17-14
	Special City Council Meeting Minutes - 06-23-14

	B - Resolution No. R-1819 - Acceptance of Drainage Easement
	Resolution No. R-1819

	C - Resolution No. R-1820 - Acceptance of Drainage Easement
	Resolution No. R-1820

	D - Ordinance No. 2014-30 - Highway 36 Annexation
	Ordinance No. 2014-30
	Charter Excerpt - Part I, The Charter, Article I, Section 1.03(c)
	Resolution No. R-1811 - 07-01-14
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 07-01-14

	E - Resolution No. R-1787 - Professional Services Agreement for Comprehensive Plan
	Resolution No. R-1787
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 06-24-14 
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 05-06-14
	Professional Services/Engineering Project Review Committee Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 02-11-14 

	2 - Presentation Regarding Eagle Scout Project for SCRSC
	Presentation - Seabourne Creek Sports Complex Sign Beautification
	Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 06-26-14

	3 - Resolution No. R-1815 - Authorization to Submit Apache Foundation Tree Grant Application
	Resolution No. R-1815
	Apache Foundation Tree Grant Program Application
	Location Map - Proposed Grant Award Tree Planting Locations
	Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 06-26-14

	4 - Consider Motion to Adjourn for Executive Session
	5 - Hold Executive Session
	6 - Adjourn Executive Session
	7 - Resolution No. R-1817 - Appointment of Municipal Court Judge for Two Year Term
	Resolution No. R-1817

	8 - Resolution No. R-1818 - Annual Evaluation and Compensation for the Position of Municipal Court Judge
	Resolution No. R-1818

	9 - Announcements
	10 - Adjournment



